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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss attributable to owners of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year is HK$66,188,000 (2015:
HK$39,338,000) and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2015: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group
recorded a consolidated turnover of HK$126,779,000 (2015:
HK$119,886,000) and a loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of HK$66,188,000 (2015: HK$39,338,000). The
drop in gross profit from HK$57,458,000 to HK$31,833,000
was mainly attributable to the provision for impairment of film

rights and the drop in revenues from television segment.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
segment for the year dropped slightly from HK$56 million to
HK$54 million due to certain channels were terminated during
the year. As at 31st March 2016, the Group provided channels
through various operators, including Red Channel through the
platform of HBO in certain Asian territories, HD movie channel
through Chunghwa Telecom MOD platform, a movie channel
through the TVB pay vision in Hong Kong and a movie channel

through TVB pay TV platform in Australia.

In November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with HBO Asia to launch and distribute the “RED Channel”
in different Asian countries and territories by stages. In this
cooperation, the Group is responsible for providing contents
of movies and drama series through our content library, own
production and acquisition to the channel. This cooperation
has helped the Group to distribute its content to Asia and then
the global market. It has also helped the Group to establish
its brand name in the TV and content provider businesses.
Through the cooperation, the Group receives revenues

attributable to various Asian countries and territories including
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Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, Philippines, Vietham, Myanmar,
Cambodia and Laos. We look forward to distributing the
channel in other Asian countries and territories. In addition
to subscription revenue, the channel is expected to start
generating advertising revenue after it becomes popular in
Asia in the future. The Group is exploring further cooperation
opportunities with HBO Asia in content creation and

distribution.

The other channels have also provided steadily increasing

contributions to the Group.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities to develop channels with other operators and

other media platforms.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sublicensing segment was
decreased from HK$36 million to HK$15 million, which was
mainly attributable to lesser number of new titles released

during the year.

Besides self producing and investing, the Group also makes
use of its wide distribution network developed for years for
its business of film distribution agency. Equipped by the
Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience and
network in program sourcing, the Group is confident that it will
continue to provide high quality and customized programs to

its audiences.

Following the development of its economic environment,
China’s film exhibition industry has grown rapidly in the recent
years. The China theatrical box office income has grown
continuously during the recent years. Taking into account
of the increasing demand in China, the Group continues to
strengthen its film library through acquisition, own production
and co-production. A number of new titles are in the progress

of production and they are expected to be released in the
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CHAIRMAN’S'.STATEMENT
EFHRE

forthcoming year. In addition, the Group has started to
penetrate into the China theatrical market and established its
first theatre in Tianjin since 2011. The Group’s another theatre
in Jiading, Shanghai has also commenced operations since
2013. The Group’s theatres are all digital and equipped with

3-D movie broadcasting functions.

The theatre in Tianjin has 7 screens consisting approximately
1,200 seats and the one located in Jiading, Shanghai has
10 screens with approximately 1,600 seats. The theatres
contributed revenues of approximately HK$35 million (2015:
HK$25 million) in aggregate during the year. Although the
Group’s theatre operations is still under investment stage, the
Group is confident of its prospects taking into account the

continuous growth of China film exhibition industry.

The revenues attributable to sale and distribution of films
and programs in audio and visual product format dropped
to the level of approximately HK$0.2 million (2015: HK$0.8
million). Following the shrinkage of video industry and rapid
development of technology, the distribution of films and
programs is no longer limited to video discs but in digital
formats available over the Internet. The Group is diversifying
its distribution network to online downloading and streaming

in order to adapt to the expected future consumer behavior.

The Group has launched its video website “www.116.tv”
and its video apps “116”, which include contents of films,
drama and entertainment news, and also invested in two
game development companies. Taking into account that the
operation is still in investment stage, the segment attributed
revenues of approximately HK$1.8 million (2015: Nil), which
was attributable to the two mobile games launched during the
year, and loss of approximately HK$17.7 million (2015: HK$9
million) for the year. Despite this, the Group considers the new
media investment will ignite a revolution to the industry and fit

the expected market demand.
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The Group’s artiste management business contributed
approximately HK$1.1 million (2015: HK$2 million) revenues
to the Group during the year. The Group will continue to seek
other potential artistes and performers in order to build up a

talent pool from which all future productions will be benefited.

During the year, the Group started a new operating segment
of concert performance. Two programs were held during the
year and contributed revenues of approximately HK$19 million
(2015: Nil) and loss of approximately HK$0.8 million (2015:
Nil). The Group is of the view that this new segment will bring

increasing input to the Group.

The Group’s channel management operations are conducted
through its associated company, namely Hongkongmovie.com
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“HKM”). Other than
providing services to the Group, HKM also provides playout,
post-production, HD-film restoration and channel management

services to a number of other media operators.

HKM has started to provide its services under the developed
M-OTT platform which enables audiences to watch content
through TV, PC, smart phone, tablet and smart TV and set-
top box. HKM is also co-operating with other institutions to
develop more advanced technology in multimedia area, e.qg.
content distribution network, which is expected to contribute

future favorable returns to HKM and the Group.

During the year, following the changes in the investment
market conditions, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss turned to record an fair value loss of
approximately HK$14.3 million (2015: gain of approximately
HK$6.7 million). The investment properties portfolio of the
Group contributed a deficit on revaluation of approximately
HK$10.4 million (2015: surplus of HK$7.6 million). Such
unrealised gains/losses have no effect on the Group’s cash
flow. During the year, the Group disposed of certain available-
for-sale financial assets and recorded a gain of approximately
HK$10.6 million.
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In September 2014, the Company granted 72.8 million share
options to qualified participants at an exercise price of HK$0.7
per share. A share-based payment expense of approximately
HK$6.1 million (2015: HK$8.5 million) was charged to the profit

and loss in the current fiscal year.

In July 2015, the Company completed a top-up placing
of 280,000,000 new shares and raised net receipt of
approximately HK$277 million for the Group’s future business
development and general working capital. Following the
placing, liquidity of the Group was enhanced and the
equity base of the Company was further broadened and
strengthened and the Group believes that it will continue to be
benefited from that and its increasing exposure to the global

entertainment industry.

On 13th April 2011, the Company received a writ of summons
and statement of claim, which was amended on 12th October
2012, with no specified amount of the amount of damages
being claimed by a third party in respect of alleged fraudulent
breaches relating to the management of an associated

company which is under liquidation.

The directors of the Company, after taking advice from the
legal advisors which have considered the information so far
available, consider such claim is not strong, and the Company
has a good chance to defend its position. In this regard,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate any material
liabilities would arise from this litigation and there would be
no material impact to the financial position nor consolidated
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31st March 2016.

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to

generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.
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Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2016, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$77 million, of which approximately
HK$10 million were utilised. Certain of the Group’s deposits,
financial assets and properties with aggregate net book values
of HK$124 million were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. The Group’s gearing ratio of 1.4% as at 31st March
2016 was based on the total of bank loans and overdrafts
and obligations under finance leases of HK$10,262,000
(of which HK$1,512,000, HK$1,428,000, HK$4,232,000
and HK$3,090,000 are repayable within one year, in the
second year, in the third to fifth year and after the fifth year
respectively) and the shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$759,269,000. The Group’s borrowings and bank balances
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely.
During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group did not
engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign

currency.

At 31st March 2016, the Company had contingent liabilities
in respect of guarantees given to banks for facilities of its
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$45 million and
commitments in respect of film production, film and program
licensing agreements and other investments amounting to
approximately HK$128 million in aggregate. The commitments
will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and banking

and other available facilities.

Employees

At 31st March 2016, the Group employed 223 staff.
Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on market trend
and individual staff’s performance. In addition to the basic
salaries, staff benefits include discretionary bonus, medical
insurance scheme and contributory provident fund. The Group
also has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company.
Employee benefit expenses of HK$54.8 million, including
a share-based payment expense of HK$6.1 million, were

charged to the profit and loss during the year.
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Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, aged 57, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible for
the corporate strategy and development of the Group. He is
the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998. Prior to 31st December
2015, he was an independent non-executive director of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is the father of Mr. Li

Tang Yuk, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Tong Hing Chi, aged 61,

the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and

is the Managing Director of

financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of experience in the entertainment and multimedia
industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Tong has been
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry
Association Limited (“MPIA”) since 2001.

Mr. Li Tang Yuk, aged 31, joined the Group in 2008 and
appointed as an executive director of the Company in May
2014. He is mainly responsible for the business development
of the new media sector of the Group and its principal
associated company. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) from Chu Hai College of Higher
Education. He is the eldest son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the

Chairman of the Company.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED = SR iR 445 5 & B B bR 2 &

WO N

PITEE

FEREE 575 AEB(R-ANEFER
M)ZRIMA  EEREERR  NBREE
BEEM e — - FTEEEESEREZRR
RERETEER  AEFNTAKEEER
BMREREH - FERER-NANNFRHAE
FEBELRFZHERERLIABER - B
—E-AFF+ZRA=t+—HA HRESE
ERERLB(BBHERZ AR DT ([
XA DRIZER(RIZEAR ) EHRE) 2 BIF
HITES - ERALIDUTESTRMEALE
ZRH e

BEEREEE 61 AEEZEETHKE
EEAEEER-RRUBITHRIE B
—NWAZFEMALERE > R—ESHEFIF
FEECEFREERER BLEAKH
BT AREHMAEEREERE BT
NEEE REBRBMERZERITHE
FEBE-_TELR BEER-_ZTZ—F
MrEEEBEERESERATDVTEHDE
E

FRBEE 3R REZFZTNAFMAKRE
B IA-Z-—NFEABZEALRLAH
TESE -REIEREAEEREIERERN
AZHRRERRR FRESAREER
BRCIBEESE(RB)BETEM4 - WAKR
RAEFEFHELEZRTF °



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Dr. Dong Ming, aged 58, has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company with
effect from 1st September 2014. He received a Doctorate
Degree from the London School of Economics and Political
Science in 1991 and has over 20 years’ experience in financial
investment and corporate management. Prior to joining
the Company, Dr. Dong worked for Sunbridge Investment
Management Co., Ltd., an investment fund management
company. He had also been a Senior Managing Director
of Bear Stearns, and Director of Merrill Lynch respectively,
and Executive Director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited and Tianjin Development Holdings Limited,

both shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hugo Shong, aged 60, was appointed as the non-
executive director of the Company in February 2007 and
is a partner of IDG Capital Partners, and the President of
IDG-Asia, which has headed International Data Group Inc.’s
operations in information technology publishing, market
research and tradeshows in the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Shong
is now the trustee of Boston University. He is also a non-
executive director of WPP plc, which is listed on the London
Stock Exchange. Prior to 5th February, 2016, Mr. Shong was
also a non-executive director of Huayi Tencent Entertainment
Company Limited (formerly known as China Jiuhao Health
Industry Corporation Limited), a company listed on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, aged 69, has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
18th October 2011 and is a corporate executive with a
distinguished career in the fields of media, technology and
finance. He served as Executive Vice-President of MGM
Inc., and as Senior Vice-President at Paramount Pictures
Corporation. He was later the CEO of Seattle-based NVST
Inc, a private equity research firm. His business experience in
Asia dates back to 1989 when he first managed Paramount’s
role in the consortium which won the government-sponsored
bidding for Hong Kong’s cable tv franchise. He became a
partner in Hong Kong based Stone Drum Capital in 2005, and
since that time has played a key role in the development and
continues to be the President and the Chief Operating Officer
and a member of its Board of Directors of eChinaCash Inc.,
a Beijing-based card services company which is partnered
with SinoPec Group in China. Over the past decade, he has
also provided consulting and strategic advisory services to a

number of international corporations.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lam Lee G., aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st February 2007.
He holds a BSc in sciences and mathematics, an MSc in
systems science and an MBA from the University of Ottawa
in Canada, a post-graduate diploma in public administration
from Carleton University in Canada, a post-graduate diploma
in English and Hong Kong Law and an LLB (Hons) in law from
Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in law
from the University of Wolverhampton in the UK, a PCLL in
law from the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in
Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong SCS, an MPA and a PhD from the University of Hong
Kong. A former member of the Hong Kong Bar, Dr. Lam is a
Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, an Honorary Fellow
of CPA Australia and a Fellow of CMA Australia.
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Dr. Lam has over 30 years of multinational general
management, strategy consulting, corporate governance,
investment banking, direct investment and investment fund
management experience, and also serves on the board
of directors, the investment committee and the advisory
committee of a number of publicly-listed companies,
investment funds and NGOs in the Asia Pacific region. Having
served as a Part-time Member of the Central Policy Unit of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for two terms, a Member of the Legal Aid Services
Council, a Member of the New Business Committee of the
Financial Services Development Council (FSDC), a Member
of the Derivatives Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) and a Member of the
General Council and the Corporate Governance Committee
of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Dr. Lam is
Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited, a Member of the Jilin Province Committee (and
formerly a Specially-invited Member of the Zhejiang Province
Committee) of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC), a Vice Chairman of Liaoning Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association, a Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, a Member of the World Presidents’
Organization, a Member of the Chief Executives Organization,
a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the
Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of
the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR), a Board
Member of the Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong
Kong and Macau, a Founding Board Member and the Honorary
Treasurer of the Hong Kong Vietham Chamber of Commerce,
a Member of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, a
founding Member of the Hong Kong Korea Business Council,
a Vice President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation,
Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology Association
of Hong Kong, Chairman of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic
Cooperation Foundation (HKAECF) and a Member of the Court
of City University of Hong Kong.
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EERSEEEASZ/IT

During the year, Dr. Lam was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Sino Resources Group Limited on
18th November, 2015 and resigned as vice chairman and a
Non-executive Director of Heng Fai Enterprises Limited on
27th July 2015, he was a Non-executive Director of UDL
Holdings Limited from 9th October 2015 to 8th December
2015, and resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Imagi International Holdings Limited on 28th January 2016.
The companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2013 has
extensive entrepreneurship experiences and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated
from China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984.
Mr. Guo is presently an independent non-executive director of
Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited and Honghua Group
Limited and has also been appointed as the independent non-
executive director of MIE Holdings Corporation since 13th
November 2015 (companies listed on the Stock Exchange). He
is also the Chairman of CNHK Tech Co. Ltd. and CNHK Media
Limited.

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, aged 60, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 1st March 2016, is an seasoned executive in the
Information and Communication Technologies industry. He has
served Hong Kong Telecommunications (“HKT”) for 34 years
and has held many senior management positions in his tenure
of service. Prior to his retirement at HKT, he was the Managing
Director of Business Processes and responsible for reviewing
and overhauling HKT’s business processes and related
systems. Mr. Leung had also been the Managing Director of
TV & New Media, where he was responsible for now TV, MOOV
and now.com.hk, as well as business development of Internal
Protocol Television (“IPTV”) opportunities internationally. Mr.
Leung joined Cable & Wireless HKT’s multimedia business
unit in 1994. His previous appointments also included the
Executive Vice President of Consumer Marketing & Business,
and responsible for marketing, product development and
management of PCCW’s consumer telephone and broadband
services.
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Mr. Leung has served the Communication Association of
Hong Kong as a member of the Executive Committee from
2006 to 2010. He was also a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council’s Entertainment Industry Advisory

Committee member between 2008 to 2010.

Mr. Leung graduated from the University of Toronto with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1979, and from Canada’s University

of Windsor with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1980.

Senior management

Mr. Zhuo Wu, aged 60, is the President of the Group’s China
division, Mr. Zhuo joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible
for the Group’s overall operation in China. Mr. Zhuo has over
35 years of experience in the film industry. Prior to joining the
Group, he had been the Vice President and General Manager
of a sizable film studio company and digital media company in

China respectively.

Mr. Chan Lun Ho, aged 46, is the Group’s financial controller
and is responsible for all financial and accounting matters
of the Group. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of auditing and accounting experience. He joined the
Group in July 2002.

Mr. Long Sao lan, aged 57, is the Program Development
Manager of MATV Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Long is responsible for the development and management
of the Group’s TV operations. Mr. Long has over 30 years
of experience in TV operations. Prior to joining the Group in
December 2000, Mr. LONG worked for Commercial Radio,
Television Broadcasting Ltd, HK Cable TV and Chinese

Entertainment Television.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The principles adopted by the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to
shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code for the year ended 31st March 2016,
with the exception of the deviations as mentioned below:-

(1) Appointment term of non-executive directors
Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific terms. There is no
specific term of appointment of the non-executive
directors of the Company, however, they are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with Bye-laws of
the Company. Accordingly the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to deal with the
requirement in respect of the appointment terms of non-
executive directors as required under the code provision.

(2) Composition of nomination committee

Under code provision A.5.1, the nomination committee
shall comprise a majority of independent non-executive
directors. During the period from 1st December 2015
to 29th February 2016, the nomination committee has
only two independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors and accordingly did not comprise a
majority of independent non-executive directors.

Following the appointment of the independent non-
executive director and nomination committee member
effective on 1st March 2016, the code provision A.5.1
has been complied with by the Company.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2016.
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Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2016, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including four executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Li Tang Yuk and Dr. Dong Ming, two non-executive Directors
— Mr. Hugo Shong and Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, and three
independent non-executive Directors — Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo
Yan Jun and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic. Biographies of the

Directors are set out on pages 10 to 15.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. Other than Mr. Li Tang Yuk who is the eldest
son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the Company, there
is no relationship among members of the Board and the

independent non-executive directors.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of the irrespective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance

with the terms of the guidelines.
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Board of directors (Continued)

During the year, the Board held six board meetings and one
general meeting. The attendance of the directors are set out
below:

EEg )
ER BEEREFANEECEER AR
HA®  REEZHERHBIIMOT

Attendance
HERE

Board General

Meeting Meeting

EF2EE BRXE

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEFEEE 6 1

Mr. Tong Hing Chi EEREE 6 1
Mr. Li Tang Yuk TRBEEE 3 —@

Dr. Dong Ming EfEL 6 1
Mr. Hugo Shong REIES Lt 2 —@
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford 5t £ - —@
Dr. Lam Lee G. MREBL 3 —@
Mr. Guo Yan Jun BEELRE 3 —@
Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic RESEE(RZE—-RE=-A—HEZMT) N/ATE A N/ATE A

(appointed on 1st March 2016)

Mr. Cheung Ming Man RAREE(R_T-—AF+-A—AE1) 3 —@

(resigned on 1st December 2015)

Note

(a) The directors were unable to attend the general meeting
due to their respective engagements.

During the year, all directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operations. The
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial
to the Group in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses and self-
studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s financial
statements and accounts, and annual and interim
report; (b) to discuss and review with the auditors of the
Company on the scope and findings of the audit and the
external auditor’s management letter; and (c) to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices,
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group. The audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the

committee is Dr. Lam Lee G..

The audit committee held two meetings with the
Company’s auditor during the year. All of the then

members attended the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2016 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure

have been made.

TRERME

EFXERE

ARHPHESEERTHBE  EFEH=RE
BEZEEXFH -REEEUELFREZH
EHERBEEE MEZEEREEREMN
BREEGCHESERN 2 EEFHRE -

(1) FEER®
AARERBELEMRAFEI21E3.23
HRERIEEERESE - EREES -
ERZEECTERER () BRHLEE
ZHKHRE - RE - FERTHERS
(b) B2ZR A B 2 A% BB 5 5 &%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ERER  URIMEZBAAEEE
%R (c)ff’n‘ﬁﬂx‘%ﬂﬁ%&é?rﬁ%&
BHl - BEE  ABEZEREAREE
FE BREEERERQNRN=ZEBILHK
BITESHREREL  FHRFELAERP
BERELHER  c TEETEANTER

:tO

B EBREAD DRUMRENEST
MARE- - ZER2RENREYEY
BREEE -

AEEBHEE-ZZE-—A"E=ZA=t+—-HI1
FEZRRERTHEE  FTELER
XBERRABEZHECHEREZESSE
M ZZEESRAZSXEDNESEA
S EARBEMHFER  TEEETH
W o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F#k

19



) 2
WO N

20 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% 55 % £

CORPORATE':GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

Board of directors (Continued)

()

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee according to the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules with written terms of reference. lIts
primary duties are to (a) make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management and
the remuneration of non-executive director; (b) establish
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy; (c) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior

management.

The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung
Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the committee is Dr.
Lam Lee G..

During the year, the remuneration committee met once
to discuss remuneration related matters. All of the then
members attended the meetings. During the meetings,
the performance and remuneration of the executive
directors were assessed and the policy for which was

discussed and approved.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior

management are set out in note 39 and note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Board Committees (Continued)

3

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules
with written terms of reference. Its primary duties are
to:—(a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c)
access the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, and two executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and
Mr. Tong Hing Chi. The chairman of the committee is Mr.
Guo Yan Jun. The nomination committee determined the
policy for the nomination of directors and the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to
select and recommend candidates for directorship during
the year.

During the year, the nomination committee met once, all
of the then members attended the meeting.

Under the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members, the nomination committee reviews and
assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board
and recommends the appointment of new director when

necessary.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(8) Nomination Committee (Continued)
In designing the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee has considered a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The nomination
committee will also consider factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 40 to 42. Amount of approximately
HK$1,603,000 was charged to the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st March 2016 in
respect of the audit service provided by the auditor of the

Company.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company. During the year, the policy for the corporate

governance of the Group was received and determined.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management of
the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records;
and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood

of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its

subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair

disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its

performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions from

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors

are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put

through the following channels:

1. by mail to the Company’s head office at 5/F, Mei Ah
Centre, 28 Chun Choi Street, Tsueng Kwan O Industrial
Estate, Kowloon;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2751 3388;

3. by fax at fax number (852) 2799 3643; or

4. by email at webmaster@meiah.com.
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TEERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the office.
If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them may convene the special general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may

be convened by the Directors.

If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting not being the person to be proposed, wishes to
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) shall give his intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director; (ii) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (iii)
must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The minimum length of the period, during which the Notice
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the Notice
is submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of the Notice shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2016.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 43.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties
are set out on pages 183 to 184.

Share issued in the year

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31st March
2016 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2016, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$206,557,000, comprising contributed
surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of
HK$28,463,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
182.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
principal terms are set out as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to directors and employees, consultants,
agents, advisers, customers, suppliers, business and
joint venture partners or any employee thereof, of the
Company, its subsidiaries and its associated companies
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Group by aligning the interest of option holders to
shareholders of the Company.

(b) Participants

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the
“Board”) may offer to grant share options (the “Options”)
to any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner or
any employee thereof, of the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associated companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as
the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

(c) Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. Subject to the provisions of
the Listing Rules and applicable law and other regulations
from time to time in force, the Board’s administrative
powers include the authority, in its discretion:-

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme;

(i) to determine, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and the law, the time of the grant of
Options;
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c) Administration (Continued)

(iiiy to determine the number of Shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option
Scheme;

(iv) to approve forms of option agreements;

(v) to determine the terms and conditions of any
Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

° the subscription price;

° the Option Period, which shall be not greater
than the period prescribed by the Listing Rules
from time to time (which is, as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, a
period of 10 years from the date of grant);

° the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it vests or
becomes exercisable in whole or in part (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify
any minimum holding period);

° the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not
specify any performance target);

° the amount, if any, payable on application or
acceptance of the Option and the period within
which payments must be made;

° the period, if any, during which Shares allotted
and issued upon exercise of the Option shall
be subject to restrictions on dealings, and the
terms of such restrictions;

(vi) to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme;

(vi) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme,
including rules and regulations relating to sub-
schemes established for the purpose of qualifying
for preferred treatment under foreign laws and for
benefits intended solely for any particular type of
Qualifying Grantees; and
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

Administration (Continued)

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial shareholders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of
the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned for
a period of 28 days from the date of the offer (or such
longer period as the Board may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the Subscription Price Reference
Date; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
Subscription Price Reference Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Option Period

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant Option.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share
Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Overriding Limit

The limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) below, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, being
563,303,452 Shares (the “Initial Mandate Limit”),
based on 5,633,034,525 issued Shares as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other schemes will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10%
limit.

Refreshing of Mandate Limit

The Company may by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules to
the Shareholders before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (the “Refreshed Mandate Limit”)
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate
Limit. Options previously granted under the
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with any of the schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share

Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv) Grant to specifically identified Qualifying

(v)

Grantees

Specifically identified Qualifying Grantees may be
granted Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The
Company may in addition seek separate approval
by its Shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided that
the Options in excess of the limit are granted only
to Qualifying Grantees specifically identified by the
Company and a circular containing such information
as required by the Listing Rules is issued to the
Shareholders before such approval is sought.

Limit for each Qualifying Grantee

The number of Options that can be granted to any
Qualifying Grantee during any 12-month period shall
be subject to the restriction that the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
Options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in such 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Where any further grant of Options
to a Qualifying Grantee would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant shall
be subject to separate approval by the Shareholders
in general meeting with the relevant Qualifying
Grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall
issue a circular containing such information as
required by the Listing Rules to the Shareholders.

As at 31st March 2016, the number of securities

available for issue under the Share Option Scheme

was 592,311,452, having approximately 9.99% of
5,9283,738,525, being the number of issued shares of the
Company at 31st March 2016 and the date of the annual

report respectively.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

Movements of the share options granted under the Share

Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

SRS =)

FRRBBERETDRHBKREZSBMT :

Number of options

MkRESE
Outstanding
at the Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
beginning during during during  at the end
of the year the year the year the year of the year
REMKRITE FREH FERTE FRigl RERKRTE
Directors EE
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEEEE 6,500,000 — - — 6,500,000
Mr. Tong Hing Chi BEMREE 6,500,000 - - - 6,500,000
Mr. Li Tang Yuk TRMBEE 6,500,000 —  (1,940,000) - 4,560,000
Dr. Dong Ming ERFHL 6,500,000 — - - 6,500,000
Mr. Hugo Shong =T v 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford %£4% 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Dr. Lee G. Lam e 1,500,000 - - — 1,500,000
Mr. Cheung Ming Man REAGIEE
(resigned on (R=Z2—-1%F
1st December 2015) +T=A—HEHI) 1,500,000 - (400,000) — 1,100,000
Mr. Guo Yan Jun BEELE 1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000
Employees of =]
— the Group —AEE 25,960,000 —  (6,484,000) (2,202,000) 17,274,000
— An associated Company NI 6,700,000 — (1,830,000) (202,000) 4,668,000
Other participants Hin2 8% 5,060,000 - (50,000) (440,000) 4,570,000
71,220,000 — (10,704,000) (2,844,000) 57,672,000

)
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Directors of the Company
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (Managing Director)
Mr. Li Tang Yuk

Dr. Dong Ming

Non-executive directors
Mr. Hugo Shong
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lam Lee G.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic (appointed on 1st March 2016)
Mr. Cheung Ming Man (resigned on 1st December 2015)

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Mr. Cheung Ming Man resigned on 1st December 2015 as an
independent non-executive director of the Company due to
personal reason. Mr. Cheung has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to the affairs
of the Company needed to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

ESEHRE

EAFESF
FAREBEZEABREABULERAREEZESE
mT

BiTES

FEREILE (Z/F)
BEER L (EFHEE)
FEBEE

st

FERITESR
REEERR 4
Alan Cole-Ford %4

BIUFRTES

MREHE L

BHRELE
REAKE(R=FE-—ANF=ZHA—HEZT)
RPABEE(R=F—"F+=F—HEE)

RARTAERERRBFRAEG L  EFARE
AAR 2 NEMBERE SRR EEEE -

RABLCERREARE - ER=ZF—-H1F
TZA-—BEBREARCAZBIYFHITES -
RELHER  REESSYETFAIL - K
BMETMNEBEALCASHARBARARR
X o

EECRESH
BREERIBFAGREEREEZES
LR SRR 2 BT 3L R AR — R A UL T A
BB CEERERN) ZRBEH

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F#k

33



)

i
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s
business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its

subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which

a director of the Company had a material interest, whether

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 10 to 15.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests

ESEHRE

EFRESTHRASRELF -

and/or short positions in the shares, EAFEMAREERESEMEM
underlying shares and debentures of the AEREBEZEM - HERD R
Company or any specified undertaking BRBZHER WKkE

of the Company or any other associated

corporation
At 31st March 2016, other than the interests of the directors in
the share options granted during the year as disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”, the interests
and short positions of each director and chief executive in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company

RZZB-AEZA=Z+—-0 RESRER
ERTBRERBRESS | -REE) 2
R REBARQBMKEFRPERD ([
RGN EXVEBE 2R ATFE 2 Z LM
RSB A A EE B RESER&
BITRABEARAREGHREEE(RES
Bz ER) 2R M - HEARG REEE &
HmRXBMT ¢

(a) WEEEOC.2ETZELTIHER
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as

Number of shares beneficially held

at 31st March

— Long position 2016
EaRAzcRMBA — ¥8 R-ZE—REF
Personal Family Corporate =A=+—H
Name of director interests interests interests EELTERT
EENE BAES FEER EEES BFzESL
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 317,097,500 189,843,750 2,378,407,550 48.71%
ZEEEE Note (i) Note (ii)
BIEE () BEE (i)
Mr. Tong Hing Chi 16,875,000 — — 0.30%
BEERLE
Mr. Li Tang Yuk 1,940,000 — — 0.03%
ZEMBEE
Dr. Dong Ming 5,000,000 — — 0.09%
EHELT
Notes: et -
()  These shares are held by Ms. Li Pik Lin, the spouse of )y ZERVETEHELEZRBZTZE
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing. BELtiER -
(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited, iy ZEROCHZEHEEEERZHZ

a company beneficially controlled by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

=R -

AF Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any specified undertaking
of the Company or any other associated
corporation (Continued)

(b) Interest in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

EFRESTHRASRELF -
Z 4% BT 77 45 7 3 75 B H fih 4E {7
AEREEZEG - HERG R
REBZHEER ®kE@

(b) FLFMBLARED
FEALEBAFETINBELRAER
EE1 BT 2 ERERELRD

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

S ERRIERIE

Bz 8B

Personal interests

Name #iB BAES
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EuYERERRAA 500,000
Mei Ah Press Limited EuREFRLT 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EDHTRUEERAT 10,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial shareholders’ interests and/or
short positions in the shares, underlying
shares of the Company

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept

under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st

March 2016, the Company had been notified of the following

substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being

5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These

interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of

the directors and chief executives.

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company

Ho Chi Sing {7

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P.
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd.
Zhou Quan EZ&

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P.

Li Pei Chin ZX&A]

Notes:
(@) Included the 370,205,516 shares as set out in note (b).
(b) Referred to the same parcel of shares and included the

307,385,666 shares held by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund
L.P.

Note

(b)
(b)

ESEHRE

FERBRRNAELXTFZGRHER
BRigZESR KK

RAE AR B SR DI EEXVER £ 336K AR E <
TERREBECMER R-Z-RF=
=t—H > ARAEEBHUTIERAF
BIORES%FIU LT ERRER LR ©
RERBERENREFHRESRESTHR
ABELIN S o

SREHEO0.02ETZF AT EHER
Number of shares — Long position
Ei#A — 8

% of the issued
share capital of

the Company as

Corporate at 31st March

interests 2016

RZB—RF

=RA=+-—H

GHELXTERT

EEED BFEZHSL

398,840,000 6.73%

370,205,516 6.25%

370,205,516 6.25%

370,205,516 6.25%

307,385,666 5.19%

334,042,000 5.64%
M -

(a) ‘BIEMEE(b)FrEi2 370,205,516 B2 AR 1D ©
(b) IERE —# B %H K B FEIDG-Accel China

Growth Fund L.P.3#5%H 2 307,385,666 %
B o
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Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 20%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 38%
Sales

— the largest customer 16%
— five largest customers in aggregate 40%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st March 2016 is set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of
this report.

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on
pages 16 to 24.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ interests in competing business
None of the directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors
of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or an associated company (if made by the Company).

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB R E

i
pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 43 to 181, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2016, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

B ZHEERE
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EFRGaMBERARENR
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RERFFRERER T BB A B KRR T 4 55
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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B 2B AR S

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31st March 2016, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th June 2016
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Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other (losses)/gains — net

Selling, distribution and marketing
expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income — net

Share of profits of associates

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Wz

SHERA

EF

HAbg A

Hit (&18) s — B8
HE ~ RITRTMBERMX
THRX

EEBR

R T N
BhE AR A

BMEWRA — FHE
PEAL TR & 1 B)E A

PP R RATIES IR
FrSBR

FABR

FE(L RN -
RRBEEA
FEZERER

FAFHAAEGESRER

BREARBESRE

The notes on page 51 to 181 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Note
Biat

17

e llmk

Year ended 31st March
B8E=A=1T—HLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-IfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
126,779 119,886
(94,946) (62,428)
31,833 57,458
13,662 14,479
(15,386) 14,510
(11,964) (18,770)
(91,652) (107,946)
(73,507) (40,269)
1,066 1,321
(546) (916)

520 405
2,485 640
(70,502) (39,224)
(247) (1,022)
(70,749) (40,246)
(66,188) (39,338)
(4,561) (908)
(70,749) (40,246)
HK cents HK cents
¥4/ B
(1.13) (0.70)

S1Z181 B2 ARG KRER 2B
BB 1D o
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CONSOLIDAT.ED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e ZHERER

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of
tax:

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Surplus on revaluation of buildings

Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of buildings

Items that may be reclassified
to profit or loss

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets — net

Release of available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve upon
disposal

Impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

The notes on page 51 to 181 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Year ended 31st March
#EZE=A=1T—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—HF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
BtEE FHET FET
FANER (70,749) (40,246)
Htt 2@k » MERRIEA :
TEEN S EEEm&Z
HE
BFEGHER 13(a) 1,595 8,494
BFEMAEMBEEZIEL
I 30 (311) (1,379)
HEEE 7 B R E 2k 2
EHH
AHEENBEEZARE
W= — FEE 21(a) 11,821 3,120
B B IR R [0 ] 4 S S B S
EEEMHHE
(10,554) —
AR ERKEERERE
1,150 49
SN R 1,887 (198)
FREMBEWRS - M
& 5,588 10,086
FERNZEEBGIREH
(65,161) (30,160)
B2 EEGIREH :
BAREEB A (60,231) (29,244)
IR R (4,930) (916)
FREEEBELLE
(65,161) (30,160)

B o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
neEEERER

As at 31st March

®=B=+—H
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-—HF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
btaE F&iT FET
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE Tt b E AR 12 27,296 28,084
Property, plant and equipment M - HBRRFRE 13 203,006 218,668
Investment properties REYHE 15 211,449 223,575
Film rights, films in progress and film EXRE BEPEEFR
royalty deposits B MERSE 16 136,647 98,944
Other intangible assets Hih\p &EE 14 - 146
Interests in associates REE DT 2R 17 4,663 2,128
Interest in a joint venture R—EEaEbE IR 18(a) - —
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEMKEE 21(a) 8,186 6,149
Other receivables and deposits HEMEWFERZRS 23 5,661 5,960
596,908 583,654
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 22 116 144
Trade and other receivables g5 R HMmERRRE 23 28,872 24,820
Amounts due from associates FE U B2 N B FIE 17 7,921 2,621
Financial assets at fair value through EBEAREFTABERERZ
profit or loss Mg EE 21(b) 42,254 40,367
Pledged bank deposits EIEARITERK 20(b) 23,500 23,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkERREER 24 228,592 32,074
331,255 123,526
Total assets BEE 928,163 707,180
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the ZFXTFHEAEERRES
Company
Share capital R 25 118,475 112,661
Share premium R =E 25 407,428 126,733
Reserves (G 27 233,366 289,615
Shareholders’ funds BRERES 759,269 529,009
Non-controlling interests FFERER 651 5,932
Total equity HES 759,920 534,941
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
nEEERRER

As at 31st March

W=B=+—H
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FHE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
BtaE F&iT FET
LIABILITIES afR
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Borrowings BE 29(a) 8,675 10,314
Obligations under finance leases MERANEE 29(b) 75 250
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFREBAE 30 22,498 22,373
31,248 32,937
Current liabilities RBRAR
Trade and other payables o5 N EMENTE 28 102,625 64,402
Receipts in advance FE U FhIE 21,635 20,879
Borrowings BE 29(a) 1,337 42,473
Obligations under finance leases RIERANEE 29(b) 175 169
Current income tax liabilities BEAFr SR B E 11,223 11,379
136,995 139,302
Total liabilities HaR 168,243 172,239
Total equity and liabilities HBESRAR 928,163 707,180
The notes on page 51 to 181 are an integral part of these ES1E1BIEZME ARG B RRZE
consolidated financial statements. B IR o
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the FREMBBRERAZ—RESA=-TILBEE
Board of Directors on 29th June 2016 and were signed on its EEgtE UREEE -
behalf.
Director Director
EE EE
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FEHE BB
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREmSBR

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLTHEARE
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share- assets
based revaluation
Share  payment Buildings reserve Non-
Share Share  redemption reserve  Contributed  Exchange  revaluation fHHE  Retained  controlling Total
capital ~ premium  reseve  HBHBER  suplus  difference  reseve  MEEE  eamings interests equity
Bs  RnAR RAWORE <HRER  GARR  EREE NFEGER  EMRR  RERN  HRBNE #he
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
-2 &2 -2 741 7A1 741 74T 741 7A1 7A1 FA1
Balance at 1t April 2014 R-B-MERA-ReER 112,661 126,733 12 - 189,009 2,09 63,085 1,533 54,466 7,493 557,264
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - 0y (02
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ XM2TEHE/(E#)
Surplus on revaluation of buldings BFERRE L 195)
fote 136) - - - - - - g - - -
Deferred taxaton arising from EFEfRRRL B
revaluation surplus of buldings REWE)
fote 3] - - - - - - - - -
Fai value gains on avaleble-for-sale ~ TIAMERKER 2R
financial assets - net (note 21(2) W&~ FEny) - - - - - - - 3120 - - 3120
Impairment loss on avallable-for-sale ~ TRHEEHEEZRE
financial assets i - - - - - - - 49 - - 9
Currency translation differences HBEEE
- Growp - 428 - - - - - (149 - - - [ (157)
— Associates (note 17) - BENAWE) - - = = = () = - - S Gl
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)  Ef2TNE/ (58)4E - - - - - (190) 7,11 3,169 - ® 1008
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2ENE /(B8 - - - - - (190) 7115 3169 (393%9) ol (30,160)
Share option scheme: Rt
~ Share options granted and vested - BEAREEZBRE - - - 8,482 - - - - - - 8,482
Dividend relating to 2014 “E-RERERS - - - - - = = = = (76d) (76d)
Non-controllng nterest, aising from ~~ $RAHEE 2L RER
busingss combination - - - - - - - - - 19 19
Total transactions with owners, BREACRREE ER
recognised directly in equity REGRI = - - 8,482 - - - - - (645) 7837
Balance at 31st March 2015 RZE-EFZA=1-R
bd 1 112,661 126,733 12 8,482 189,009 2,102 70,180 4702 15,128 5,932 534,041
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CONSOLIDAfED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

meRREFHR

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLTRAAR
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share- assets  Retained
hased revaluation  earnings/
Share  payment Buildings reserve (accumulated Non-
Share Share redemption  reseve Contributed  Exchange revaluation kM losses) ~ controlling Total
capital  premium  reseve  DRBBEE  suplus  diference  reseve  HEEE  REBH/  interests equity
B%  BRER ROREGE <HREE  WARB  EREE QTEGRRR  ERER  (RHER)  ARRER #he
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
-4 -2 - &1 &1 7471 747 747 7A71 787 7471
Balance at 1st April 2015 R-B-TEMA-RekR 112,661 126,733 12 8,482 189,009 2,102 70,180 4702 15,128 5,932 534,41
Comprehensive loss 2GR
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - - (66,188 (561 (10749
Other comprehensive income/(loss) R 2EKE /()
Surplus on revaluation of buldings BEERREE 150)
(note 13(a)) - - - - - - 1,595 - - - 1,595
Deferred taxation arising from EREfERELZER
revaluation surplus of buildings A
fote 30 - - - - - - Bl - - - Bl
Fair value gains on avallable-forsale  TRAEHHEEZANE
financial assets - net (note 21(3) Wi - BR210) - - - - - - - 11,821 - - 11,821
Impairment loss on avalable-for-sale ~ TEAEHHEEHE
financial assets i - - - - - - - 1,150 - - 1,150
Release of avalable-orsale financial WY EBRE ALY ERF
assets revaluation reserve upon EEEHE
disposal - - - - - - - (10,554) - - (10,554)
Currency translation differences bS]
~ Growp - K2R - - - - - - - - By 1
— Associates (note 17) - BeNAWEY) - - - - - ) - - - - )
Total other comprehensive incomef(oss) ~ Ett2FEUE / (58)4% - - - - - 2,256 1,284 2417 - (369) 5,368
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EKE /()& - - - - - 2,256 1,284 247 (66,189) (9%  (65161)
Issue of shares (note 25) Bikfi2) 5R00 T - - - - - = - - 68T
Share option scheme: Rt
- Share options granted and vested -~ EREREE 2 BRE - - - 6,124 - - - - - - 6,124
— Issue of shares upon exercise of - TFEREAR ARG
share options (note 25) (Hitos) 214 9421 - (214 - - - - - - 7493
~ Share options forfeited - fiRhoERE - - - (286) - - - - 286 - -
Dividend relating to 2015 “E-RERBCRE - - - - - - - - - (360) (360)
Capital njection from non-controlling ~~ ERAKEE AR ER
interests - - - - - - - - - 9 9
Total transactions with owners, BREACRREE BER
recognised directly in equity #and 5814 280,69 - 3,69 - - - - 26 (31 20,140
Balance at 31st March 2016 RZ3-7EZAZt1-R
Fé -3 118,475 407,428 12 12,178 189,009 4,358 71,464 719 (50,774) 651 759,920

The notes on page 51 to 181 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HREESRER

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1T—HLFEE

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-—fF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
btaE F&iT FET
Cash flows from operating activities EEXBEZHERE
Cash used in operations EEfMARS 31(a) (246) (16,275)
Income tax paid 2 FEH (543) (893)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBKTARSFER (789) (17,168)
Cash flows from investing activities BREFEIZHERE
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of WIBMHE AR - REFHE
cash - 107
Incorporation of associates MR BEE D T 17 (483) —
Interest received 2 URFIE 953 1,321
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHEEMKEE
financial assets (1,200) —
Purchase of film rights, films in %ﬁ%?&hﬂﬂg CBRAE
progress and film royalty deposits EREEMEZRE (36,428) (45,819)
Purchases of financial assets at fair BERAAEABERE
value through profit or loss 2B ERE (19,268) -
Purchase of property, plant and BB HEERRE
equipment 13 (992) (2,187)
Proceeds from a government grant REBUTE B Z S FIE 365 =
Proceeds from disposal HERE ’“TZF)T?%@KIE
of an associate 17(d) - 641
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEENKEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets FriSFIE 10,984 =
Proceeds from disposal of financial Hj’iiﬁi\‘ﬁ‘,ﬁ*f)\Tn¥§
assets at fair value through profit or 2B EE 2 S IE
loss 3,032 2,142
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE  #EERBRE2
plant and equipment PS8 31(a) 73 147
Proceeds from capital reduction of an R E & A T &R IR A 2
associate T8 FRIR 17 388 =
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFAREFHE (42,576) (43,648)
Cash flows from financing activities m!i%;ﬁziﬂﬁﬁi
Proceeds from bank loans TERZFBFRIE 31(b) 7,000 14,800
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary §§fﬁ B2 FreRE
shares 276,874 —
Proceeds for exercise of share option  {T{EEIRIE ZFTBRE 7,493 —
Repayments of bank loans EBIRITER 31(b) (32,327) (9,601)
Interest paid on loans and overdrafts ENERREZFE 8 (535) (907)
Repayments of capital element of EERERY Zzﬁé*ﬁfﬁ
finance leases 31(b) (169) (96)
Interest paid on of finance leases MERNZENFE 8 (11) 9)
Dividend paid to non-controlling FE(SFEIE IR R 2 IR B
interests (360) (764)
Net cash generated from financing RMETHRERS T
activities 257,965 3,423
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mEEERER

Year ended 31st March
#EZE=A=1T—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FHEF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Hiat F&iT FET
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BRE&RERHFLEHIBIN
cash equivalents (KD )BEE 214,600 (57,393)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHZBREREERELIER
of year 14,737 72,366
Exchange differences [N =% (745) (236)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FH#ZRERERRLEH
year 228,592 14,737
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRERRQBEEZREF
cash equivalents 2
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERREER 24 228,592 32,074
Bank overdrafts RITEX 29 - (17,337)
228,592 14,737
The notes on page 51 to 181 are an integral part of these ES51ZE181 BT ARREMBRRZE
consolidated financial statements. B Eh 1D o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, theatre operations,
concert performances, mobile games applications and
video online, artiste management, sales and distribution
of films and programs in audio visual product format, and

property investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved

for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2016.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

e SRR MR

—iE#
XRRVLENEEERIFA(TAQT )
REMBAR(RBE A5E ) EERSE
ERER  EXHM - EXMERBER
B ThEE SRe EFEAE
RAEARBLERE BAEE  UETF
EmEAEERRTZ2EXREERY
ERE -

AATDIRBRETMHRIZZBRA
7 o HEEMiEE 2 ik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM

11, Bermuda °

KARREBBERZMAERLA L

m o

MREBEFHPN  REEWBERERUBT
(B2 - NFEMBHRRELH
EEER-_E-R"EXRAZThABHIE
F g o

EEEHBREE
REAGEMBHRRAZETEBHHR

RERTX - REEHAN » KEBEK
K2 cEFERNERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of buildings, investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 4.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures
(a) Amendments to standards adopted by
the Group
The following amendments to existing
standards are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1st April
2015. The adoption of these amendments
to standards does not have any
significant impact to the results and

financial position of the Group:
HKAS19, “Defined Benefit Plans”

Annual improvements to HKFRSs —
2010-2012 cycle

Annual improvements to HKFRSs —
2011-2013 cycle

21 REEEHE)
21.1 B BRELSHREZ

(a)

FEEFENZERZE
H

LT B ER 2 BRI A
MNER-—Z—HFWNA
— By z&HRzEsT
HIRRA - RAZRSE
Bl 2 BT RS R @3
1B R IS AR I SR AR
BEAEE:

EREHEAFE195%
[RERFIETE]
ERMBREEAZE
EREEE — —F—
EFEE-_E-_FFH
BEMBREERNFE
MEEE — = ——
FE_ZT—=FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) New standards and amendments to
standards not yet been adopted
The following are new standards and
amendments to standards which have
been issued but are not effective and
have not been early adopted. The Group
plans to adopt these new standards and
amendments to standards when they

become effective:

2 BEESHRREE®

2.1

REREH)
21.1 Bt RELSHRFEE (E)

(b) RIEFWNZITERRE
RIZEETZE
LU 5 22 B 2 22 A iz &
Rl AT M - MR RE
M AR PERMN o
REEBERZEHER
R HE R 2 AB R] AN A BB
BRaR

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on
or after
RUTEHE
Z &M
ZEEHMER
HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” 1st January 2018
BRUBRERAEIRIHMBIA ] “2-N\¥-A-H
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28, “Investments entities applying the
consolidation exception” 1st January 2016
BEUBREELE105  BEMBREEAE12FREBSTERE 285 (BT A)
[REER  ERGZAARZBIMER ] “Z-5x%¥-A-H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, “Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture” Note
BRMBREENE10RRBBSTEAE 28K (BIAR) [ REERHBENRELEZHEZ
BEEHENIE ] M
Amendment to HKFRS 11, “Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations” 1st January 2016
ERMBRERAE 1K BTR)WEARLERE 2] “Z-5x¥-A-H
HKFRS 14, “Regulatory deferral accounts” 1st January 2016
ERUBREENE 4R EEETEF] “E-5¥-A-H
HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers” 1st January 2018
ERUBREEAE 1SR BEFEOMNER] “2-N\f¥-A-H
HKFRS 16, “Leases” 1st January 2019
BBHEREERE 1655 HE ] “Z-N¥-A-H
Amendments to HKAS 1, “The disclosure initiative” 1st January 2016
BREERE 1R (BT A RETE ] ZE-"5-A—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) New standards and amendments

to standards not yet been adopted
(Continued)

e SRR MR

2 BEESHRREE®

2.1

wREREE)
21.1 Bt RERERHEE (E)

(b) RIEFWNZITERRE
RIZEETE (7E)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
RUTAMS
Z &R
ZEEHMER

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, “Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortization”

BREEAE 16K RE RS

STERIE S (BRI A BT ERTERBELE

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, “Agriculture: Bearer plants”

BFREGTTENE16 FREBETEANE N RUBITR) BE  £EEN
Amendment to HKAS 27, “Equity method in separate financial statements”
BREGTTENE 27 (BIR) BUBBRE 2B %
Annual improvements to HKFRSs — 2012-2014 cycle
—E-MEFH

BRUBRSENFERERR - —B-2FF

Note:To be announced by HKICPA

The Group has not early applied these
new and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective in the
preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.

The directors of the Company are in
the process of assessing the financial
impact of the adoption of the above new
standards, amendments to standards
and annual improvements. The directors
of the Company will adopt the new
standards, amendments to standards and
annual improvements when they become

effective.

1st January 2016
“Z-X¥-A-H
1st January 2016
—~¥-A-H
1st January 2016
—~F-A—-H

1st January 2016
“E-"¥-A-H

Kz : FEBEE
NEEM

REBRFERGESWBHRET - HERE
FRRAZECAME NS RERZHET R
BT R R BIREER -

mm&%

8

%%ﬁm&ﬁﬁ@%%tﬂ%ﬁ
Al Z A& FT A K 5 2 BUE 2 B
ATE%%F%&M%%E%%
EA 2T AR FERE

A
.8
o 78
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622)
In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial

statements.

2.2 Consolidation

2.2.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and a
jointly controlled entity are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 BEESHRREE®

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 #HFEEBAE)

2.2.2 Associates

2228 H

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets

and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.

BENRAEMEASEEH
FEARFEIMEETEZ
BERE —RHWFH20%E
50% R E R 2 IR R
ERRAZREUEREE
AR RIBHEDRE REA

HLUEARER  MREES
B AR REER
W R REERRERZ
B AEERBEELATZ
REBBWBRCRHA 2B
Z-REBBHERT 2B
RREmE  BE QAT ZEA
BEAREERGBE AT 2
WA EERBBEZAREFRF
BZEMEZBARSEE -

MR ERR Z B REER
WA MEBAFENBUR
B AEXaREMEEKE
ARz 258 2B E L FE
DEHoERER (WERA) °
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
2.2.2 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
2.2.2 Associates (Continued)

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in

associates are recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

2.2.3Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are

classified as either joint operations or joint

ventures depending on the contractual rights

and obligations each investor. The Group has

assessed the nature of its joint arrangements

and determined them to be joint ventures and

joint operations.

(a)

Joint ventures

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses
and movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group’s investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of
the group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf

of the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
2.2.3Joint arrangements (Continued)

(a)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED £ &F %% £

Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Joint operations

Joint operations arise where the investors
have rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities of an arrangement. A
joint operator accounts for its share of
the assets, liabilities. Joint operations
arise where the investors have rights
to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities of an arrangement. Investments
in joint operations are accounted for such
that each joint operator recognises its
assets (including its share of any assets
jointly held), its liabilities (including its
share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its
revenue (including its share of revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint
operation) and its expenses (including its
share of any expenses incurred jointly).
Each joint operator accounts for the
assets and liabilities, as well as revenues
and expenses, relating to its interest in
the joint operation in accordance with the

applicable standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as

the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$,
which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities

classified as available-for-sale are included in

other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the

closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the

cumulative effect of the rates prevailing

on the transaction dates,

income and expenses are translated at

the rate on the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the

company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (Continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recorded at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated

to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 ME - BBREMHGE)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.

Construction in progress refers to the leasehold
improvements where the construction works have
not been completed, and is carried at cost which
includes development and construction expenditure
incurred, and other direct costs attributable to the
construction works, less provision for impairment
losses. When the construction work has been
completed, the expenditure is transferred to
leasehold improvements. No depreciation is

provided on construction in progress.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease, or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the lease term, or 7-10

improvements years, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%

and equipment
Motor vehicles 25%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve

are transferred to retained earnings.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and

that is not occupied by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in

the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the

operating segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.

Licences

Separately acquired licences are shown at
historical cost. Licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Licences have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
licences over their estimated useful lives of 2

to 3 years.

Contractual supplier relationships

Contractual supplier relationships acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
supplier relations have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life
of the supplier relationships, and recognised in

the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits

(a)

(b)

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Upon
the release of the pre-recorded audio visual
products and the materials, film rights are
amortised at rates calculated to write off the
costs in proportion to the expected revenues
from exhibition, reproduction and distribution
of audio visual products, the licensing of video
rights and other broadcast rights following
their release. Such rates are on a systematic
basis, with reference to the projected revenues
and the underlying licence periods, and are
subject to annual review by the Executive

Directors.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provisions are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenues
generated by these films. The balance of
film production costs not yet due at the end
of each reporting period are disclosed as
commitments. Costs of films are transferred to

film rights upon completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(c)

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by
installments under licensing agreements
for distribution of audio visual products
and sub-licensing of film titles, in specified
geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under
the licensing agreements is disclosed as a
commitment. Upon receipt of the audio visual
products and the materials, the deposits would
be transferred to film rights and the remaining
payable balances will be recorded as a liability.
Provision for impairment loss is made against
deposits to the extent that film rights will not
be received and the deposit is not recoverable

in the future.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise
its rights under a licensing agreement because
the film producer fails to complete the film, the
Group writes off the difference between the
advances made and the estimated recoverable

amount from the film producer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(c) Film royalty deposits (Continued)
At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that film rights, films in progress
and film royalty deposits are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the carrying amount of
such assets is assessed and where relevant,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
the asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFREE@
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets 210 B EE
2.10.1 Classification 2101 2%

The Group classifies its financial assets in AEEBEGKEERTS

the following categories: at fair value through HRISE  BAARMEBEAR

profit or loss, loans and receivables and mix > BERNERAREUR

available-for-sale. The classification depends AHHEE - 2EAHRNEFE

on the purpose for which the financial assets ABBEEENME - BE

were acquired. Management determines the BEYSEREEEHTK

classification of its financial assets at initial BEZDHE -

recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through (a) BAAREFABZRS
profit or loss HEEZE
Financial assets at fair value through BEAREITABRERZ
profit or loss are financial assets held for HREEARBFEEZ
trading. A financial asset is classified in MBEE - WUBEE
this category if acquired principally for EBANETEREER
the purpose of selling in the short term. HREHE  BloEAL
Assets in this category are classified as Ao fiil FEEA A 1218
current assets if expected to be settled BAREE  tERlzE
within 12 months; otherwise, they are EXEARBEE &
classified as non-current. BIDBRFERDEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected
to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“amounts due from associates”, “pledged
bank deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance
sheet (notes 2.14 and 2.15).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end

of the reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continueqd)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income

statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.

The fair value of quoted investments is
based on their current bid prices in an active
market. Available-for-sale equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less

impairment.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED £ &F %% £

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 212 MBBEZRE(E)

BB EIIEEEE (F)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (a)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets carried as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to
in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed

through the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.17

2.18

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entity operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised

or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and a jointly
controlled entity, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered

by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension

schemes.

The group companies in Hong Kong
participate in a mandatory provident fund
scheme and another defined contribution
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in

the future payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.21 EEW&EF (&)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued) (b) BHELEML(E)
The group companies in the People’s Republic AEEETHEARLME
of China (“PRC”) participate in defined (T E DA F2EEBEEA

contribution retirement benefit plans organised
by relevant government authorities for its
employees in the PRC and contribute to these

plans based on certain percentage of the

FTEBMRETERELH
ZARAEMRRAKGE AT
BEREEHFEz2ETES
mZEEMR LRAB

salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, BABRNEEBHREZRS
up to a maximum fixed monetary amount, EESHE - BFEEIMBIE
as stipulated by the relevant government HAERBEZETEEMST
authorities. The government authorities FEEERARKENREEZ
undertake to assume the retirement benefit EARBAERE - ZSHEN

obligations payable to all existing and future
retired employees under these plans. The
contributions are recognised as employee

benefit expenses when they are due.

2.22 Share-based payments

BRI DEER/AMA

222 LI EERZ &

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment (a) LIRRBEFELIRHESERZ
transactions fI#%x5
The Group operates an equity-settled, share- ZF%*" —HHUERE

based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined

by reference to the fair value of the options
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions (Continued)

° excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified

time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or holding shares

for a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company
issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (and share

premium).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued) 222 LI EERZ &R (EZ)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among
Group entities
The grant by the company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to

equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HESHBREE#

policies (Continued)

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued) 223 BERRRARKRE
Provisions are measured at the present value of the BEDRBITEEEPAER Y2
expenditures expected to be required to settle the REFTE @ ZRERUAERRTE
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current HERKEEEZFIMRZEEZ
market assessments of the time value of money and 2R B AR R - AR
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in EBEME Mz B EIRRARE
the provision due to passage of time is recognised S e

as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that RAEBNRRNBAESH AR
arises from past events and whose existence 1> MEGEENE 424k
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non- BAREE T EES 2 THEERR
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events B2 HBRFITHRMER - HIR
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can ARBRRAREEIBESHZRE
also be a present obligation arising from past events B RMEBRDBERT KIS
that is not recognised because it is not probable HRBERIMNR  SEEATRE
that outflow of economic resources will be required FEEEE A SERTE

or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is FAREBTERIAEERGEST
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial MBMTEIRE o MIMNRZATREMLR
statements. When a change in the probability of an BEHTEHRERING - HEZR
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will R AEE -

then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition 2.24 Rt

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated
net of discounts returns. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues, which are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract periods which generally coincide with

when the relevant channels are broadcasted.

(b) Film exhibition income is recognised when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment

is established.

() Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised in accordance with

the terms of the underlying contracts.

(d) Revenues from theatre operations mainly
comprise income from box office takings,
which is recognised when the services are

rendered to the buyers.

W WRERAEZ R E
e HERDHRERRR S
B MBRFHIRRERIIR - B
we A EE ) EAEARK
REMNBRABR  REFETH
REBMEEER 2EELERE - A
SENEZANE ARERZER
FEE XZEERSHEZHZSE
MRZIBEXEBF H DR -

(@) BEREBZWZEBREVER
BHERGWE RN
REBRBERENEAER
ZEHNBANREREER

(b) TEHERUA TINE SR
K pAHE 37 UK B FX 08 2 #E A B
L o

) BREREREZREREZ
WA TS 1R IR AE B S A IR TR

=3
a °

d EBEXREBRSUSEES
BEREWA  NREERE
IR HERT o

89



90

- N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(€)

Revenues from concerts performance is
recognised when the performances are

rendered.

Revenue from launching the mobile games
application is from the purchase of games
credits through third party platform’s own
charging system and use the game credits
to exchange in-game virtual items. The
proceeds from the sales of virtual items are
initially recorded in deferred revenue and are
recognised as revenue subsequently only

when the services have been rendered.

Revenue from the provision of artiste
management services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Revenue from the sales and distribution of
films and programs in audio visual product
format is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title has

passed.

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Management fee income is recognised when

the services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest

rate.

2.25 Leases

(a)

The Group as the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.25 Leases (Continued)

(a)

(b)

The Group as the lessee (Continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

and the lease term.

The Group as the lessor

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor
conveys to the lessee in return for a payment,
or series of payments, the right to use an

asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on the nature of the

asset.

Lease income on operating leases is
recognised over the term of the lease on a

straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will

comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.

Government grants relating to non-current assets
are deducted from the carrying value of the related
asset. The grant is recognised in a profit or loss

over the life of a depreciable asset.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries or associated companies to secure

loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.28 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on
the date the guarantee was given. The fair value
of a financial guarantee at the time of signature
is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm’s length terms, and the value of the premium
agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee
obligation. No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The
fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in
the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the

consolidated income statement.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of subsidiaries or associate are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted
for as contributions and recognised as part of the
cost of the investment in the financial statements of

the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors
identify, evaluate financial risks in close co-

operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC?”)
and the Republic of China (“Taiwan”)
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”) and New Taiwan dollar (“NTD”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the functional
currency of the individual group
companies and net investments in foreign

operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risk arising primarily with respect to RMB
and NTD. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through
sourcing suppliers denominated in the
same foreign currencies. Management
considers the foreign currency exposure
with respect to RMB and NTD is not
significant as the functional currency of
the respective foreign operations are also
RMB and NTD respectively.

At 31st March 2016, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year
would have been HK$1,231,000 (2015:
HK$1,238,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of payables denominated
in either HK$ or RMB that is not the
functional currency of the individual

group companies.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority
of its foreign currency transactions in
United States dollar (“USD”), which is
pegged with HK$ at a designated range
such that the exposure on fluctuation of
foreign currency rate is limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

3 HMERKBERZ)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale financial assets or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the investment portfolio
is continuously reviewed, carefully
monitored, and diversified in accordance
with the limits set by the Executive

Directors of the Group.

Majority of the Group’s equity securities
are publicly traded. At 31st March
2016,

securities of the Group had increased/

if the share prices of the equity

decreased by 5%, the pre-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$2,113,000
(2015: HK$2,018,000) lower/higher and
the equity of the Group would have been
HK$2,520,000 (2015: HK$2,326,000)

higher/lower, respectively.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED £ &F %% £

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed
with reputable banks and financial
institutions and other receivables
advanced to third parties, which generate
interest income for the Group. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by placing
cash balances in these institutions and
advances to these third parties with

various maturities and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash and other
receivables held at variable rates. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and other
receivables have been disclosed in note

29(a) and note 23 respectively.

At 31st March 2016, if the interest rate
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$1,233,000 (2015: HK$94,000) lower/

higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, and
other debtors. The Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivables through the application of
credit approvals, credit ratings and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit

histories.

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Provision for
impairment of receivables will be made in light

of existing evidence of uncollectibility.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability
of funds to meet all contractual financial
commitments as they fall due. The Group’s
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against
risk limits and to maintain a contingency
plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity

requirement.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group meets its day to day working
capital requirements, capital expenditure and
financial obligations through cash inflow from
operating activities and the facilities obtained
from banks. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, management maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability

under committed credit lines.

The directors closely monitor the Group’s
liquidity position and financial performance
to ensure it has sufficient cash flow to meet
the operational need. These measures include
raising additional capital; extending existing
loan facilities; obtaining additional financing
from banks; and realising certain financial
assets held by the Group through disposal, if
considered necessary. At 31st March 2016,
the Group held cash and cash equivalents
of HK$228,592,000 (2015: HK$32,074,000),
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$42,254,000 (2015: HK$40,367,000)
and other current assets of HK$36,909,000
(2015: HK$27,585,000) that are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk. The Group is expected to be
able to generate sufficient cash flows to cover
its operating costs and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
coming twelve months from the date of these

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MERREEE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBRRERGE
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELEAE(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s non- TRETAEE 2 EITEN
derivative financial liabilities into relevant HEBERBEEB 22 HA
maturity groupings based on the remaining Bl RIBHAZEBZSHE
period at the balance sheet date to the HHZFABEETOMW -
contractual maturity date. The amounts RARE 2 SBEAGHRE
disclosed in the table are the contractual R2RERE o
undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
—£R —E@MF MELE AEHE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FHET
Group *5KHE
At 31st March 2016 RZ-Z—XFE=A=+—H
Trade and other B2 RHEMEMNRIE
payables 102,625 - - -
Obligations under MEBRNEE
finance leases 181 s - -
Borrowings B8 1,365 1,381 4,499 3,350
At 31st March 2015 R-ZE—Af=H=+—H
Trade and other B REMENRE
payables 64,402 - - -
Obligations under RMEHRNEE
finance leases 180 180 76 -
Borrowings &8 42,563 1,396 4,539 5,070

101



- N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

3 HMERKRER#)

3.2 RFEH

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative

financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ funds.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing
ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios at 31st March
2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Bank loans and overdrafts (note 29(a)) $R1ITERMKEX (A1:E29(a))
rERNEE(WE290b))

Obligations under finance leases
(note 29(b))

Total borrowings BEHBE
Shareholders’ funds REREE
Gearing ratio BESELER

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the
year ended 31st March 2016 was mainly due to
the issuance of shares via share placing by the
Company during the year.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

FEEEREARA 2 BERRELRE
EEFEEEzRN  UARRE
R R & A H 4 s AE B B AR A A
i WRFERZERRBELURD

RRENAABELRE  AKEH
SRBEARFRGT 2REHE - [
RIEE ~ BROTHRODITRRR
BROTEMBETR  HHEEEU
WA B o

REHMENET B AREU
BEEELRERER o IR
BERBERURRESE -

AEBRBAEFEBEEELE
BR20% - RZE—AER-ZF
—EF=A=+—HzEBEEEL
R

2016 2015
—B—"¥F —E-4fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET TiET
10,012 52,787
250 419
10,262 53,206
759,269 529,009
1.4% 10.0%

BE-Z—R"EF=ZA=1+—HILE
EvEBBEELRRODEEHR
FRARDAEBROEERITRN
Fek



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3

The table below analyses financial instruments

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial

assets that are measured at fair value at 31st March

2016 and 2015.

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Trading securities (note 21(b))
Available-for-sale financial assets

— Equity securities (note 21(a))

Total assets

HE
BRARBEFABRERZ
BiEEE
— R RBEFES(MZ21(b))
AHEENKEE
— RAFES (ffaF21(a))

HaE

e SRR MR

3 HMERKBERZ)

DREMSE
TRUGBETEDMIRAAETNE
ZHMBEIR - FTRASHZEEN
T

s RFEEESEEEITRTS
FRECGRERAE)(F -
&) o

o EHEAMER)SME(BERE
FTEE) A — R P RE LS
ZUBREEREBEHE(F
=) e

e [AMFERTEETHEE
ZEESEEEE(BTTE
REE)(E=R) -

Level 1

E—#
2016 2015
—B—XF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
42,254 40,367
8,186 6,149
50,440 46,516
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group does not have any financial assets/
liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangement and similar agreements

during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong, the United
States of America (“USA”) and the United Kingdom
of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (“UK?”)

classified as trading securities or available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets that are not
quoted in an active market are measured at cost

less impairment.

The carrying values less provisions for impairment
of trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associated companies, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade and other payables,
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits
As set out in note 2.8, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each reporting
period with reference to both internal and external
market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective
titles, the expected production, sales and
distribution costs budget, and the general economic
condition of the relevant markets. As at 31st March
2016, the carrying value of film rights, films in
progress, and film royalty deposits amounted to
HK$136,647,000 (2015: HK$98,944,000). Changes
in assumptions used in this assessment, including
the forecasted revenue, may result in additional
provision being made in the consolidated financial

statements.

e SRR MR

4 MRS ST RAER

fEET R AHE TSR L - WUBER
BRAMEZ(BREEZBRATHEEAR
BEZRREMHELR) HER -

REBMBARAREHGEARMBR - FEE
RHEFTAEESR ROSEEBBRER
HE RAREERTEVRFEZE
EREEZREBEELEAR 2MES
RABRREMANT -

(a)

BEURE BROAEUREXRE
meREE

BAMTE 2.8 FTE - BEMME - 8
HAEBYREFMERESIRER
EHRSERIBRIAZTHER
mETRERE > fIMEREEY
FRIERZEREE - EHRME -
HERBTHATEE » LURIEES
152 — RSB R Z SHETR - R
—E-RE=ZA=1+—-H0 8%
B BETEYRETMEREZ
BR T {8 % 136,647,000 8 T (= &
—F 4 : 98,944,000 7T) ° LFF
R ARE 2 2B (BT A
R)AEEHRERGEHBEREKF
{EHBRIMRAE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of the collectability of those receivables and on
management’s judgement. As at 31st March
2016, the trade and other receivables, net of
provision, amounted to HK$34,533,000 (2015:
HK$30,780,000). A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer and the realisation of
any repayment pattern promised. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional provision for impairment may

be required.

Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of available-for-sale equity
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. If the declines
in fair value below cost were considered significant
and prolonged, additional impairment may be

required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.

e SRR MR

4 MRBEAERAE =)

(d)

(e)

AHHERFRBZRME

REBREFBSTTERE 395
ZIESIBEAHHERSTRERS
HBRBERBR - AEBEEAFHE
RHVE o PAEH LA B - AKE
FHE(BEAEMER) FHRZER
BZRAAEBRRERARZEE ; U
RWBRERR 2B REEEREH
EBRE  BETERIFBRR
BRI UREERBERSR
BERZE - X AEKREEREAE
BRABEARKY - AIAJREAEL
BEINRE ©

FRiG 1
REBARKNEEEERE 27
RSN - EEEREHER
BREREANERE ZHE - ©
AEXBBRETABASZ RERER
RUBEZRZRAE - AEEKRE
SRR IIE 2 G5
mER AR BETEEZRE -
ZEBRZRABBERRENS
Rz EEAE - AAREEEY
EFHEE 2 IRz N KR FR
SHEERAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5 Revenue and segment information 5 KERSEMEH
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FExT
Revenue I &
Licensing income [t LN 101,125 114,383
Sales of services BRFE U A 22,026 2,267
Sales of goods SHER M 3,628 3,236
126,779 119,886
Other income Haulg A
Rental income from investment properties BEWERSWA
(note 15) (Kiat 15) 9,378 9,499
Management fee income EEBRA 245 1,821
Dividend income BEWA 1,066 1,367
Others HAth 2,973 1,792
13,662 14,479
140,441 134,365

The chief operating decision maker has been identified
as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in

order to assess performance, allocate resources and

make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors REDEB o

have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

For the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group operates
in eight business segments:

—  Television operations

—  Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-

licensing
—  Theatre operations
—  Concert performance
— Mobile games applications and video online
—  Artiste management

— Sales and distribution of films and programs in

audio visual product format

—  Property investment

e SRR MR

IR 9EEE =)

BEZZ—R"E=ZA=1+—HLFE
REBR EEK D EPEE

- BREH

- EBE¥BUREZRERLDRER

- ®hRE®

=
- ,ﬁ\l] g

- FHRESRAEARESER

— UETERFAHERBITEER
BB

- MERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=)
(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March BREFTEERE P Z2BE_ZE—~E=
B=+—HLFESEERMT :

2016 by each principal activity is as follows:

Year ended 31st March 2016
BEZZ-RESRCT-ALER

Sales and
distribution
Film of films and
exhibition Mobile programs
and film games in audio
rights applications visual
Television licensing and Theatre Concert  and video Artiste product  Property
operations sub-licensing  operations  performance online - management format  investment  Elimination Group
WWEER
(ALY k2 i EEBER
REMRRY BRELR BAERR
BRRE RER  ERRR HER  GRRE  EAEE B WREE i k50
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
FET FET &L &L FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note (b))
()
Seqment revenue Al 53,097 15,173 3,33 19,088 1,805 1,133 u1 - - 16T
Reportable segment profit{oss) PEE VRS VA ) 4340 (23,458) (5,515) (822)  (17,658) 24 (2,706) (5,681) - (51,413)
Reportable segment assets T253H4E 46,374 125,179 31,061 10,585 4,667 1,311 26,320 215,864 (14 461814
Reportable segment liabites PES Vi (28964 (16,145 (15,007) (6,079) (1,665) (19) 327 (23,960 - (156,106)
Depreciation of property, plant and 0% BERZEZAER
equipment and amortsation of leasehold ~ EEX R HERE
[and and land us rights bl 1] (103) (616) (8,960) - (550) - (269) - - (10,492)
Fair value losses on revaluation of EfiRENEL0NERE
investment properties - - - - - - - (10441) - (10441)
Amortisation of fim rights EohRzRE (14,296) (8,336) - - - - - - 15 (22617)
Provision for impaiment of fim rights and ~ EZRERERMELHERR
fims in progress - (17,904) - - - - - - - (17,904)
Reversal off(provison for) impaiment of ~ EZEUGIERE
trade receivables BE/(BE) - 12,156 - - - 7] - - - 12,154
Addtions to property, plant and equipment ~ FEHE  BER
e 84 - 18 %2 m - 8 3 - 992
Additions to fim rights, fims in progress ~~ FEEZAE - BHREYR
and film royatty deposits EZhERS 0,514 70,110 - - - - - - - 19,624

)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ = /Zl-i%#&%m—.lﬂhi

5 IN@R9EBEE =)

Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2015 by each principal activity is as follows:

Seqment revenue

Reportable segment profit/{loss)

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilties

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of leasehold
[and and land use rights

Amortisation of intangible assets

Fair value gains on revaluation of investment
properties

Amortisation of film rights

Provision for impairment of film rights and
fims in progress

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Additions to film rights, films in progress and

film royalty deposits

Bl
T2RARAE/ (58)
2§nEE

PES VR

0% BRRRRLAER
RETBRINERR

=>

=1}

ByER.EE

SVRERAATEY
HERR
RARUEIERR
%E%%\&%&ﬂﬁ
FESTNR RINETR
Bl

REFTEXERE D CEBZE-ZE—RF=
A=+—BLFEIHERMT :
Year ended 31st March 2015
BE-T-1EZA=T-ALER
Sales and
distribution
Film of fims and
exhibition Mobile programs
and film games in audio
rights applications visual
Television  licensing and Theatre Concert  and video Artiste product Property
operations  sub-licensing  operations  performance onling  management format ~investment  Elimination Group
WEEER
EVHRR FRER FAHER
ENERY ERRAR ¥EY
EREH RER  FRER BEE  EERE  BARE BB NERE i £
HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$(000
i &1 7én 7én 7éi 7éi i i fér fér
(note (b)
(i)
56,085 3807 24,962 - - 2267 1% - - 119,886
o e (o) - 043 60 @60 12409 -
44,791 97,692 39,738 - 452 348 25,100 27,182 (161) 442,308
(2444 (44.462) (15,854) - (3,084) (1,431) (3,704) (24.325) - (11730
(121) (79) (9,191) - (525) - #9 - - (11,082)
- - - - 201) - - - - 201)
- - - - - - - 7603 - 7603
(8,387) (7434) - - (399) - - - i (16,185)
- (2,082) - - - - - - - 2,082)
- (15 - - - - - - - (15
1,385 - - - 418 - 785 8 - 2702
21,985 23441 = = 393 = = = = 45,819

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ¥k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(@)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED £ &F %% £

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment profit/
(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax
expense is not allocated to reportable segments.
Information provided to the Executive Directors of
the Group is measured in a manner consistent with

that of the consolidated financial statements.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segment profit/(loss) is profit/(loss)
before income tax, excluding unallocated share of
profits of associates, other income, other (losses)/
gains — net, finance income — net, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment, amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights and share-based
payment expense that are used by all segments and
other corporate expenses (mainly including staff
costs and other general administrative expenses) of
the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude unallocated
interests in and amounts due from associates,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents and other corporate assets (mainly
including property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights that are used by
all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude unallocated
bank borrowings and other corporate liabilities
(mainly including accrued charges of the head

office).

SENEEBRAA

5 INSR9EBEE =)

()

A 2R/ ST BERERERE 2
SITBERMER o XBEREEEER
REREIBERR TGO BEE
Z 0 ERFIE, (BB ) ETE - Fi8H
BXTE2EF 2B o @A
EEHTESRENE R K ARER
EUBEBRR—HZHAFE

2hFE B8R -BERARE

AEE
TR D EEB DB

%

S [

A2/DWFE,(&B) BRAE
BARE(FE) TEEFEXD
BLFE L EgEE N BRI » EfulgA
Hnh(FE) s — F5E - mE
WA — FHE - FEISHERZY
¥ HMERBEINE  HELH
RitERAECBERBESTX
HER URANSECHMEE
X (EZEEEEIRAREA—
MBATHERIX)

L5 WEE T DERDTRAY
BAEZERR W E A TR
- THEEHBEE  BARE
HABREZHBEE RERE
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REEURAE LR+ 1A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

(b) The revenue of HK$9,623,000 (2015:
HK$11,320,000) attributable to the segment

“property investment” has been included in other

income.

(c) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities.

Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities are reconciled to loss before income tax

and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

follows:

Profit or loss

Reportable segment loss
Unallocated amounts:
Unallocated other income
Unallocated other (losses)/gains
— net
Unallocated finance income/(costs)
— net
Unallocated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights
Share of profits of associates
Share-based payment expense

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss before income tax per

consolidated income statement

e SRR MR

5 IN@R9EBEE =)

b) THMWERE |DHEML W
9,623,000/ T(= & — & & :
11,320,0007 T ) B2 5t A H fib Uk
)\o

) FARHLoiEDE BEREEZY
R

=l

2RO iERE EEREGEZY
BREAANEEE 2 BRATISHAIEIE ~ &
EERELEBEHIRNT :

"a 2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
2o e (51,413) (29,045)
RO EIE
R EE MU A 1,471 1,468
Ko BmEAM(EE) s
— FE (4,945) 6,907
ROBREWA (RA)
— FH (546) (916)
ROTMYE - WERRE
ZITERBEE LR
Tt AR 2 e
(6,248) (6,047)
& {i B 2 ) B 2,485 640
DR AER 2 REX (6,124) (8,482)
ROEEERT (5,182) (3,749)
HAWEKRYZ
FRETS B AIE B (70,502) (39,224)
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e R ERR MR

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
(c) (Continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated assets:

Unallocated property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land and
land use rights

Unallocated available-for-sale
financial assets

Unallocated financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Unallocated cash and cash
equivalents

Unallocated interests in and amounts
due from associates

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets per consolidated balance

sheet

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities:
Unallocated bank borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities per consolidated

balance sheet

5 INSR9EBEE =)

() (#)
HE 2016 2015
—E—-R¥E —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRIT FET
A2BHEEE 461,814 442,308
ROBMERE !
ROBYE - BWBERRER
HELTH R T AR
201,462 206,327
RAOBWAREENKERE
8,186 6,149
ROMIRARBEHABREK
ZHBEE 42,254 40,367
AROWMBEERERREIER
195,264 65
ROBMRBE AR Z
e I FE U Bk & X B FRIE 12,584 4,749
RAOBEXERE 6,599 7,215
mEEEAERMIZ
BHEE 928,163 707,180
AR 2016 2015
—E=—R¥E —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
2B HEERE 156,106 117,302
KOEMAE
RAOEIRITEE 10,012 52,787
RABMEXBE 2,125 2,150
REEERABRMIIZ
BEeE 168,243 172,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(©)

(Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The result of its revenue
from external customers and non-current assets
other than interests in associates and financial
instruments located in Hong Kong and other

countries are summarised below:

Hong Kong &E
PRC I El
Taiwan =
Other countries HibBEIxR

During the year ended 31st March 2016,
revenues of approximately HK$20,369,000 (2015:
HK$21,236,000) was derived from one single
external customer attributable to the television

operations.

e SRR MR

5 IN@R9EBEE =)

(©)

(&)

REEETEUER - PERAEE
R - AUREBREMER
ZHMEFRERIIFERBDERE (R
BMERTA 2 Ea R PH AR
2R

Revenue from

external customers

SHMERS
2016 2015
ZE-REF —Z—EHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
52,496 36,323
39,390 46,164
11,609 13,376
23,284 24,023
126,779 119,886

BE-E-A"FE=ZA=1+—HL#E

EHE - W& 420,369,000% T
—Z—FF 121,236,000 T)
DRERBRERERE S22 —F
B—IMNBES o
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NOTES TO THEICONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERR MR

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=)
(Continued)
(c) (Continued) (c) (#&)

Non-current assets

(other than interests in

associates

and financial assets)

FERBDEIE(RBELTZ
HERMBERERD)
2016 2015
et 22N 3 —E-AEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRIT FET
Hong Kong N 342,757 358,401
PRC I El 183,157 153,946
Taiwan =P | 24,512 29,131
Other countries HAipBI=R 27,972 27,939
578,398 569,417
6 Other (losses)/gains - net 6 Ht(ER) ha— 2@
2016 2015
—EZ—-R¥F —E-hfF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of BEHREVMEZAAE(EE)
investment properties (note 15) Wi (ffaE 15) (10,441) 7,603
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets A RAEFABERZHEE
at fair value through profit or loss EZARE(EE) i (14,349) 6,676
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEENKEEZ
financial assets Yz 10,554 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A HEMKEEREEIE
financial assets (note 21(a)) (KtaE21(a) (1,150) (49)
Gain on disposal of investment in an HEBRENRREZ
associate (note 17(d)) W (et 17(d)) - 280
(15,386) 14,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expenses by nature

e SRR MR

7 HEHEBSZAX

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution FTASHERAS  HE  BITRMBEE
and marketing expenses, and administrative expenses HAEXRITEAXZEZMAT ¢

are analysed as follows:

Cost of inventories (note 22)

Reversal of obsolescence of inventories
(note 22)

Amortisation of leasehold land and land use
rights (note 12)

Depreciation (note 13)
— Owned property, plant and equipment
— Leased property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (note 31(a))

Amortisation of film rights (note 16)

Amortisation of other intangible assets
(note 14)

Provision for impairment of other intangible
asset (note 14)

Provision for impairment of film rights
(note 16)

(Reversal of)/provisions for impairment of
trade receivables (note 23)

Reversal of provision for amount due from
an associate (note 17(c))

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental
income (note 15)

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (note 11)

Exchange losses

Marketing and promotion expenses

Operating lease rental in respect of buildings

(note 34(a))
Production and origination costs

2016 2015
—E—R¥E —E-—hHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
BB (Kt 22) 1,386 1,158
REFERE (fFZ22)

(88) (114)

HET MK L ERES

BisH (it 12) 788 787
WE(HaE13)

— BEYE - BERRE 15,791 16,204

— HEWE - BBRFRE 161 108
HEY - HBEREEZ

Wz (e 31(a)) - (145)
B MAE 2 HEH (T 16) 22,617 16,185
HihBL EE 2 #H

(Kiat 14) - 201
Hin\EEERERE

(BtaE 14) 146 —
B RERERE

(&£ 16) 17,904 2,082
B RWIEREER)

& (KL 23) (12,154) 11,525
JE U B e N B RN IE 2 B 1 ]

(Hia£17(c) (6,897) —
ZEETE &

— R 1,603 1,499

— BRI 77 66
EXASBWACRENEY

BELER (M 15)

1,763 1,580
EERAFEXZ(BREESHE)

(HiaE11) 54,767 50,512
& g5 1E 7,683 314
EHREERX 9,629 16,542
BFrzgefnie

(K12t 34(a)) 8,477 8,386
SUER AIER A 7,646 11,871
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NOTES TO THE CONéOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERR MR

8 Finance income - net 8 MBI — BE

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Finance income MEFA

— Interest income on short-term bank — RERITHERZAEWA

deposits 600 893
— Interest income on loans to third parties — FAE=FERZFEWA 466 428
1,066 1,321

Finance costs MERE
— Interest on loans and overdrafts — BEREREZZFE (535) (907)
— Interest element of finance leases — RERN 2 F 225 (11) (9)
(546) (916)
Finance income — net MEKRA — B8 520 405

118 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 & S BB R 2 Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax expense 9
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taiwan corporate income tax has
been provided at the rate of 17% (2015: 17%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
other countries’ profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.
Current income tax BOEA Fr 1S 8%
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEBFEH
— Taiwan corporate income tax — BEBLEMBH
— Under-provision in prior years — BAEFERETRE
Total current tax ENRARIAHE
Deferred income tax (note 30) IEEFTS 5 (12 30)
Income tax expense RS RFAX

e SRR MR

FRi3 B3
EEBANEH D RBRFEE M ERBA
LB E16.5% (ZZ—HF : 16.5%)
EHBE - AECEMBHRINRAFE
T ERBABR1I7T% (=B —HEF
17%)E B E - HBERFB 2B R
BB AFEMTERBABREAEE
REEBMEBRRZRITBETE o

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
131 136

49 263

39 380

219 779

28 243

247 1,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong taxation rate, as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
assets were recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

Associates’ results reported net of tax

Under-provision in prior years

Tax charge

Loss per share

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$66,188,000 (2015: HK$39,338,000) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,832,017,000 (2015: 5,633,035,000) in issue during

the year.

9 FrEMBEAX =)

REBZRAEHAEE 2 BERRE
RRATEREMAE 2 EmBBEIEZE

M
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
FFrigiRaIEsE (70,502) (39,224)
BHE16.5% (ZF—HF :
16.5%) st & 2 Hi1H (11,633) (6,472)
HittFRTRAHE2HE
(1,404) (4,197)
BERBUA (3,690) (3,482)
DGRk 5,124 279
WERBERELERBHEEZ
HIEEBE 12,587 15,654
By AR ARER 2 HIEEE
(366) (1,034)
2R N B FHEE (HIBRFIE) (410) (106)
BEFEREBETRE 39 380
RIARX 247 1,022
10 BREGR
(a) E=*

BREAEEDERADNRERA
FE 15 /55 #£66,188,00078 T (= &
— # £ : 39,338,000 T ) BR KA
FREZRTEBRMEF I
5,832,017,000 (= & — & F :

5,633,035,000 fI&)5tE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 Loss per share (Continued)

11

(b) Diluted

e SRR MR

10 SiREGE =)

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st
March 2015 and 2016 are the same as the basic

loss per share as the potential additional ordinary

shares are anti-dilutive.

Employee benefit expenses

Wages and salaries
Pension costs — defined contribution plans
Share-based payment expense (note 26)

(@) Five highest paid individuals

(b)

11 {E

TER¥E

BAEHA — REHRME

R BER 2 ARBAX

(Kat26)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year include three

(2015: three) directors whose emoluments are

reflected in the analysis presented above. The

emoluments paid or payable to the remaining

two (2015: two) individuals during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other
benefits in kind

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

Share-based payment expense

EX#HE  RURAMEY

BalE=
BAEHA — REHRE

(a)

it 8l

IR RER 2 SFRAX

it

H
HRBEHIEE Lﬂﬁﬁ}ifiﬁéli
BMEBE-E-—AFER-ZT—REF=

A=1+—H iﬁEﬁfoiﬁyéféﬂEEﬁ
BREANEERS -

RiEFIBA

2016 2015
—g-xE —F-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHRT
44,839 38,732
3,804 3,298
6,124 8,482
54,767 50,512

AR BEFAAL
i AEBTABBHFMAL
h SE(CE-TF ZR)BE

B2 HMEER EX 222K
BR o ¢WEHEEFEN%E§$W%

(Z2—51F WA BRaFMAL
Z@H%ZID'F :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—FHEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

2,972 2,775

18 18

419 642

3,409 3,435
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
Both of the individuals’ emoluments fell within the
band of HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000.

During the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
three (2015: three) directors or the two (2015: two)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are
reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension schemes arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong Kong
under the requirement of the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme Ordinance”). Under the MPF scheme, the
Group’s contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined in the MPF
Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,250
(from June 2012 to May 2014)/HK$1,500 (from June
2014) per employee per month. The employees
also contribute a corresponding amount to the
MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more than
HK$7,100 per month. All benefits derived from the
mandatory contribution must be preserved until the
employee reaches the retirement age of 65 subject
to certain exceptions. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The total
contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$504,000 (2015:
HK$466,000).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

1 &
(a)

(b)

(c)

BiRFIRAzZ @)

ApmeHFMAL(E)
FHMA L 2B £ E5E % 1,000,001
7T -2,000,000 8 7T °

BE_Z—~"FR-_ZF—HF=A
=t+—BLEFE > AEETED=
FZ(ZE2E-—RHF : ZR)ESIWH
(ZZ—5F  WMBA)BREFMAL
TAME - (EBMARER 2 2R
RIEABEBE o

B & By 3R
rEBCHES(BEESHME)D
HESELSEREMTHZEMH
kBN URKE2EEMBTE
o WESFELRE -

Bkt @R

REEREBERERGEAESTE
RE(GEEETEGA D AER
BETIRMERFMEATESE( A
BastEl) - RiEBESE
&R B 2 IR R R £ 5 ER A
FIREZEEHBEBAS%TE -
FREaABEESA1,2508 T
(ZE——FRAEZ-Z—NEHR
B)1,5008x(B=2—MF X
Bi) o fifE B2 HBWRARBE
B 7,100% T BlEE IS AR EE
SEtEEHAEESE 2B - RE
FHIIMERSD - BHEIEERATEE
ZEHEFITETRE  EREE
FESHmEBRFR AL - BES
FECEERAREBZEESR
HEEECESBIEE - FR
REERRE ST EMEL 2 34
X8 A 504,000 (=T —HF :
466,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c)

Pension schemes arrangement (Continued)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee) on a monthly basis. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution after 10 years of completed service,
or at a reduced scale of between 20% and 90%
after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service, in which
case the forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay the related employee benefits. The
aggregate employer’s contributions, net of forfeited
contributions, which have been dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31st March 2016 amounted to HK$86,000 (2015:
HK$85,000).

At 31st March 2016, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme
and contributions totalling HK$117,000 (2015:
HK$77,000) and HK$26,000 (2015: HK$13,000)
payable to the MPF Scheme and the Retirement
Scheme respectively were included in the

consolidated balance sheet.

1 &

(c)

e SRR MR

REFIRAXZE)
BHSHBR(F
A8 B 75 [ R R SRR ks8I (T8
TRET 2 1) fE 2k BARSH RIS
RIRPaE S BIATMEAER B
RIRENRTES S % T SR E M A

BmES B2 EEREERARER -
BAFEEEHBLIERAERE
Z2oBe(EE2DNEE - RIEE
et 8l BEEREEHESAR
BEEAFESSREHER(RS
AEEE15008T) EERRE
RI0FERBEEREZEREME
HZ2100% H% » ARTH2E9
FR%®%  RERLEHZE20%
Z0%EEMA - EHBERT
R Bt B A EE 2K -
HMESWBISEEAEEXNHE
BERA - MAKERELERHE
EEEXTE-—SHER - EREBE
—E-—AREF=A=t—-HILEEZ
GANBERARE B MHRAE
(H1BRIZ U 30) £ 86,0008 T (=
ZT—FF :85,000/8TT) °

R-ZFB-—RFE=ZB=+—0' %
|A AR D IRIBE ARG B 2 KRR
MR ZRBMER > MARES
EIRBRARETEEFE 2R D BIE
$#£117,000%8 T(= & — & F:
77,0007 5t ) % 26,0008 T (=&
—FH 4 13,000 Ex)EADAIFA
mEEERBRRA -
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12 Leasehold land and land use rights

12 HELTME T h{ERE

2016 2015
—Z—-R¥E —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April 2015 and 2014 R-ZE—HFR-Z—NFNA—H 28,084 28,871
Amortisation of leasehold land and HETHR T fFREZ
land use rights (note 7) e (T 7) (788) (787)
At 31st March 2016 and 2015 REZEBE—ARER-ZE—HF
=B=+—H 27,296 28,084
13 Property, plant and equipment 13 P13 - BB RRIE
Freehold land Buildings Leasehold Furniture, Motor Total
improvements fixtures and vehicles
equipment
KARHLH B #8 kR KE AE @t
nERE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
77 FA7 FA7 FA7 FE7 FA7
At 1st April 2014 AZE-MEMA-A
Valuation & - 154,00 - - - 154,005
Cost s 16,463 - 56,005 56,851 5,736 135,075
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3tTE - - 20,907) (38,616) (5,146) (64,669)
Net book amount EE#E 16,463 154,005 35,118 18,235 590 224,411
Year ended 31st March 2015 HE-E-LE=fA=+-
ALEE
Opening net book amount EYREEE 16,463 154,005 35,118 18,235 590 224 411
Additions im - - 726 1,330 646 2,702
Depreciation charge (note 7) ~ FTEER(#i27) - (4,502) (5,513) (5,741) (556) (16,312)
Revaluation surplus (note (8) ~ EftBE (M (s) - 8,494 - - - 8,494
Disposals (note 31() WEMH315) - - = @ = 4
Exchange differences EiZH (407) (142) (53) (22) (1) (625)
Closing net book amount ~ F#ETH(E 16,056 157,855 30,278 13,800 679 218,668
At 31st March 2015 R=2-EFZA=t+-H
Valuation k& - 17,855 - - - 157,855
Cost o 16,056 - 56,684 58,117 5,705 136,562
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3tTE - - (26,406) (44,317) (5,026) (75,749)
Net book amount EERE 16,056 157,855 30,278 13,800 679 218,668

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

e SRR MR

13 Y% - BRRER =)

Freehold land Buildings Leasehold Furniture, Motor Total
improvements fixtures and vehicles
equipment
KARELY BF i | R KE | #it
hRRE Rifi
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 T 7 T Fir FE7
Year ended 31st March 2016 HE-E-REZA=t-
HLEFE
Opening net book amount EYREEE 16,056 157,855 30,278 13,800 679 218,668
Additions m - - 637 355 - 992
Depreciation charge (note 7) ~ FEER(Hit7) - (4,762) (5,415) (5,516) (259) (15,959)
Revaluation surplus (note (3)  EfEEEA(H52(3)) - 1,595 - - - 1,595
Disposals (note 31(a) LEME315) - - - 13) - 3
Exchange differences EiZH (473) (164) (1,114) (470) ) (2,224)
Closing net book amount ~ EHIEEBE 15,583 154,524 24,386 8,096 47 203,006
At 31st March 2016 R-S-RE=R=1-H
Valuation ke - 154,524 - - - 154,524
Cost A 15,583 - 55,613 57,143 5,675 134,014
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3HTE - - (31,227) (49,047) (5,258) (85,532)
Net book amount BEE 15,583 154,524 24,386 8,096 a7 203,006
(@) The buildings were last revaluated on 31st March (a) BUEXSERGEMEZMERG

2016 by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, on a
depreciated replacement cost basis, which is the
aggregate of the land value in its existing use
and the estimated current replacement costs
of the buildings less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31st March 2016, revaluation
surplus of HK$1,595,000 (2015: HK$8,494,000) has
been credited to the other comprehensive income.

MTERARIRITEEERNELE
BAEHR=-ZE—R"F=ZA=+—8
BEHZENEZEE DRERE
Az T wEEEATTHEEETE
BRA 2 ERERERIEERMTEE
BAERAZRERE(LETTE o kR
BERIELERSHR2EHRERTIER
Hitt2E KRS ARRER ZETF
BHEER o

REBZ-Z—~"F=A=+—H
IEFE > BHAER1,595,000 E T
(ZZ—FF :8,494,0008T)E
FFA AL U o
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e R ERR MR

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@) (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy:

At 31st March 2016
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in the PRC

— Located in Taiwan

At 31st March 2015
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in the PRC

— Located in Taiwan

RZE-XEZR=+-H
EEHANENE
REaRmE:

- IRER

— fRPE

- IREE

RZZ-EFZA=+-H
EREHANENE
REaRME:

- IRER

— fRPE

- IREE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 4 & 51 & B B bR 2 &

13 1% - BERREB )

(a) (%)
NRELRE :

Fair value measurements using

LREHE HER

Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable

(Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
HtEXTHE EXTUER

BE(E=8) B (E=®)) it

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

- 136,371 136,371

12,800 - 12,800

5,353 - 5,353

18,153 136,371 154,524

- 138,365 138,365

13,900 - 13,900

5,590 - 5,590

19,490 138,365 157,855




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

13 Y% - BRRER =)

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@) (Continued) (@ (#&)

Fair value measurements using EREXAHENENAOR 2016 2015
significant unobservable inputs EE(E=MW) —ZE—-RE —E-F5F
(Level 3) HK$’000 HK$°000

FAET FET

Properties held for own use: BHEBAWE .

At 1st April 2015 and 2014 R-B-—RER-ZT—NF

MA—H 138,365 134,285

Depreciation charge EER (4,290) (4,088)

Revaluation surplus EX e 2,296 8,118

At 31st March 2016 and 2015 RIZE—RER

A

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of
valuation results.

For the properties held for own use located in the
PRC and Taiwan, the valuation was determined
using the basis of open market value. For
properties held for own use located in Hong Kong,
the valuation was determined by adoption of
depreciated replacement cost basis due to the lack
of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000/
sq. m and depreciation rate of 2.25%. These
assumptions are estimated by the valuer based on
the risk profile of the property being valued. The
higher the construction unit cost, the higher the fair
value. The higher the depreciation rate, the lower
the fair value.

+-8

136,371 138,365

MR ERERERTMTERA
BRI E HEmET 2 EE -
ZEMELERARBAMBRAER
SEEEABZ®  URGEBRRE
REBEZERZSEMETW

RURPEREEZFFEERYE
mE  HEDNEARTEEEE
E o BUREB 2 EBRYEM
5 EARZAEZTEER - AE
DIRITEEENAEETE -

KAMEEERAGEEMEZ
BEATABREEANETEF K
11,000 B T 2B EENK AR
225% ZIMER - WEBFHM
BEEM IR (A E Y 2 B AR E T
fhat o BEBMRAMS AR
WS e ERMS > AAEBK -
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b)

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. The carrying amount of the
buildings would have been HK$88,255,000 (2015:
HK$91,005,000) had they been stated at historical
cost basis.

At 31st March 2016, the freehold land and
certain buildings with aggregate carrying value
of HK$20,936,000 (2015: HK$21,646,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 29(a)).

The Group leases a motor vehicle under non-
cancellable finance lease arrangement. The lease
term is 3 years, ownership of the asset lies within
the Group. At 31st March 2016, the carrying amount
of the motor vehicles held under finance leases was
HK$377,000 (2015: HK$538,000).

Depreciation expense of HK$15,952,000 (2015:
HK$16,312,000) has been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement
(note 7).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

13 Y% - BREREE =)

(b)

AEEBZEFRGHENER MY
¥ MEERBREZEMI D RIEK
ARGIER o (i FIRE L RAEET|
BR - RIHBREE A % 88,255,000
B (ZZF—HF 91,005,000 /&
JT) °

RZE—R"FE=A=+—8 #K
HE{E 420,936,000 T (=2 —*
F 1 21,646,0008 ) 2% T KA
XL RETEFERFEAS
SEMERRITEE ZER (K
29(a)) °

AEERBEFIRERERELH
HE-—&HSE -HEHA=F &
EZFEREEAREE - R-ZF—
F=A=+—H REMEEER
BrABEZIREEA 377,000 T
(ZZ—F%F :538,00087T) °

T B B9 % 15,952,00058 T(= &
— & £ 16,312,000 T ) © &t
ANrE W E R 2 THE SR (K&
7)°
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14 Other intangible assets

At 1st April 2014
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2015

Opening net book amount
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Amortisation charge (note 7)

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2015
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2016

Opening net book amount
Impairment charge (note 7)

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2016
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

e SRR MR

14 HtiERRE

Contractual
supplier
Goodwill relationships Licences Total
&
[} R % HfE a3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiE7 FET
R=Z—-MmEMA—A
A - 4,000 605 4,605
ZHEHRAE - (4,000) (404) (4,404)
RE$E - - 201 201
BE_2-1f¥=A=1-H
I3
ENREFE - - 201 201
e —EHEL R 146 - - 146
BHEBRMHT) - - (201) (201)
FREERE 146 - - 146
R-B-1§=R=t+-H
A 146 4,000 605 4,751
ZTBHERAE - (4,000) (605) (4,605)
REiBE 146 - - 146
BE_E-AEZA=1-H
JI:3:§
ENRAFE 146 - - 146
EHER (L7 (146) - - (146)
FRIEERE - - - —
RZB—R§=ZR=t+-H
KA 146 4,000 605 4,751
ZEBERAE (146) (4,000) (605) (4,751)
FERE - - - -

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the goodwill

arising from the past acquisition has been fully impaired

and included in the “administrative expenses” in the

consolidated financial statements (note 7).

REBEE-Z-R"F=ZA=+t—-HLF
B BEKNBEEHECZHRE "
Wit AERE B B8Rk 217 B =2 J (I
FE7) e
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The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement for investment properties:

15 Investment properties 15 BEYME
2016 2015
—B-R%F —ZE-1F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#IT FET
At fair value BofE

At 1st April 2015 and 2014 R-ZE—RBFR_ZFT—OF
MHA—H 223,575 215,994

Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation BEMZARE(EE) Wi
(note 6) (M= 6) (10,441) 7,603
Exchange differences ERER (1,685) (22)

At 31st March 2016 and 2015 REB-—AFERZZ-HF
=B=+—H 211,449 223,575

LTSBEAEHRRENEMREGEE WGER
R

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

Rental income (note 5) HEWA (KaE5) 9,378 9,499

Direct operating expenses arising from EEHSRAZ

investment properties that generate rental REMEFREEZ

income (note 7) HERER(ME7) 1,763 1,580

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment

properties was performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors

Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer

who held a recognised relevant professional qualification

to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31st March 2016 and 2015. For all investment

properties, their current use equates to the highest and

best use. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

15 Investment properties (Continued) 15 BREWXEXw)
The valuation gains or losses is included in other (losses)/ EHREREEERERGEERRETZH
gains — net in consolidated income statement (note 6). fit (E538) Wzs — FEE(KisEe) o A&
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and BleHEXANEHEBE 2 SHAERE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date tEARIAABEEEBER 2EANRE
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the Hoeo REFERALEE - F_ARE
transfer. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and =B ER

3 during the year.

(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AREZRE

Fair value measured at 31 March 2016 using
RIB-REZA=+-HEEZOAEHE

Significant Significant
other observable unobservable
inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
HtEX EX
THRNE FURRYE
(B=#) (B=8) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements BEMAAETE
Investment properties: REME
— Commercial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — & — AES 12,200 - 12,200
— Commercial units - located in the PRC - BEEW - URTE 64,400 - 64,400
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong - T¥B{ — URER 75,900 14,049 89,949
— Residential units - located in Hong Kong ~~ — FEEf1 — LRE#E 42,000 - 42,000
— Residential units - located in the PRC - AEEfN - RPE 2,900 - 2,900
197,400 14,049 211,449
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15 Investment properties (Continued)

15 BEM¥E =)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) DRERBE)
Fair value measured at 31 March 2015 using
R-B-RF=A=T-RELZAAEMHE
Significant Significant
other observable unobservable
inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
HEX BEX
TRRYE TBEYE
(E=8) (B=8) st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
A7 &7 A7
Recurring fair value measurements EEMAREE
Investment properties: REME
— Commercial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — BXEf — IAES 12,700 - 12,700
— Commercial units - located in the PRC - BEEN - UiPE 67,600 - 67,600
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong - T¥E{ — RER 81,200 14,255 95,455
— Residential units - located in Hong Kong ~ — B8 — LREHS 44,900 - 44,900
— Residential units - located in the PRC - FZE[N - LATE 2,920 - 2,920
209,320 14,255 223,575
Fair value measurements using EHEXFRRBEN 2016 2015
significant unobservable inputs AR{ERE —E-RE —E-HF
(Level 3) (B=R]) HK$’000 HK$°000
TFAEIT FET
At 1st April 2015 and 2014 R-E-RFR-Z—N0NF
mA—H 14,255 13,834
Revaluation (losses)/gains BH(ER) s (206) 421
At 31st March 2016 and 2015 RZE-—RER-ZE—HEF
=B=+—H 14,049 14,255
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Investment properties (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For commercial units located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, the valuation was determined using the basis
of open market value. For industrial units located
in Hong Kong, the valuation was determined by
adoption of depreciated replacement cost basis due

to the lack of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000/
sq. m and depreciation rate of 2.25%. These
assumptions are estimated by the valuer based on
the risk profile of the property being valued. The
higher the construction unit cost, the higher the fair
value. The higher the depreciation rate, the lower

the fair value.

At 31st March 2016, certain investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$56,049,000 (2015: HK$59,155,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 29(a)(i)).

e SRR MR

15 BEM¥E#)

(a)

(b)

DRERE A

MR ENERERTMTERA
BRI E AEMET 2 EE -
ZEHEARARBOMBEAIR
SEEEASZ®H  URAEBRE
REEER 2 SEMETW

BRURBEBRTBZEEEMM
5 MENRARTEEEEE
RREBZIXEMME @ BRZ
ASEzTEER  BEDRITEE
BERAIEERE °

KANEEENAMELEREZ
EAFABREBEANETELXK
11,0008 T 2 BEE VKA R
225% ZITEX - LEMFAM
ERM IR E E Y 2 2 BBtk RAE
et - BREBURAHS 0 ARE
MBS TERES  DABEMIK-

RZE—RE=ZA=+—HB " kHE
#{8 % 56,049,000/ 8 (== —F
F 159,155,000 T) 2 & THRE
MEDIBRIER A EB FTERRIT
=8 ZER(MEE29(a)()) °
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16 Film rights, films in progress and film 16 EFXMNE  HREPERRER
royalty deposits i e
Film
Film Films in royalty
rights progress deposits Total
BEME ERSER TRRERe et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2014 R-E—mNEMB—H
Cost BN 879,298 5,821 25,992 911,111
Accumulated amortisation and iR RE
impairment (836,795) (2,771) = (839,566)
Net book amount RE#E 42,503 3,050 25,992 71,545

Year ended 31st March 2015 HE—E—AF=A=1+—H

LLEE

Opening net book amount FEXREFE 42,503 3,050 25,992 71,545
Additions =0 41,250 4,108 461 45,819
Transfers L 2,956 (2,551) (405) —
Amortisation charge (note 7) BEER (i 7) (16,185) = = (16,185)
Impairment charge (note 7) HEBR MW7) (2,082) - - (2,082)
Exchange differences fE 7 =58 (143) (1) 9 (153)
Closing net book amount FRIEESE 68,299 4,606 26,039 98,944
At 31st March 2015 R-Z—Rf=A=+—H
Cost DS 923,309 7,377 26,039 956,725
Accumulated amortisation and Rt R EE

impairment (855,010) (2,771) — (857,781)
Net book amount IRERE 68,299 4,606 26,039 98,944

Year ended 31st March 2016 HE_-_E—X"E=A=+—H

LLEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 68,299 4,606 26,039 98,944
Additions 0 17,006 56,868 5,750 79,624
Transfers i 5,120 (4,562) (558) —
Amortisation charge (note 7) BEER (fF7) (22,617) - - (22,617)
Impairment charge (note 7) HEBRMEZ7) (17,904) - - (17,904)
Exchange differences EHES (521) (867) (12) (1,400)
Closing net book amount FRIEESE 49,383 56,045 31,219 136,647
At 31st March 2016 R-E—X"E=ZA=+—H
Cost [2Z 943,247 58,816 31,219 1,033,282
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZFt#sE R FE

impairment (893,864) (2,771) = (896,635)
Net book amount IRERE 49,383 56,045 31,219 136,647
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16 Film rights, films in progress and film
royalty deposits (Continued)

17

(@)

(b)

Amortisation charge of HK$22,617,000 (2015:
HK$16,185,000) with respect to film rights has
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated

income statement (note 7).

The carrying amounts of film rights and films in
progress have been reduced to their recoverable
amounts through recognition of provision for
impairment losses of HK$17,904,000 (2015:
HK$2,082,000) which has been included in “cost of
sales”
7).

in the consolidated income statement (note

At 31st March 2016, government grant of
NTD976,000 (equivalent to HK$236,000) was
deducted from the additions of film rights for

subsidising film making.

Interest in associates

e SRR MR

16 BRME EBEHPIERCRER
WigE® @)

()

BHAS®RE 222,617,000/ T
(ZZ—H%F :16,185,000/8 7t )
BBRACT AR RR TR 2
ERARJ(FET) ©

EYRERBRIEYZERE
BEZEERIABMEERARE
17,904,000 T(= & — & F :
2,082,000 T ) il 2= H A Yg B H
B ORERERECT AGENRE
RZ[HERARI(HEET) o

RZZE—R"E=ZA=+—H K
F¥ % Bh976,000% & ¥ (4 B R®
236,000 T ) BN BEE R RESR
kR > EBHBEHUE -

17 RREQFZHES

At 1st April 2015 and 2014 RIBE-—RFR-ZT—
MA—H

Incorporation of an associate Eaiio v NG|

Capital reduction of associates B8 N T IR AN HIDRL

Disposal of an associate HEBE AR

Exchange differences fE =58

Share of profits FEAL F 5

Amounts due from associates (note (b))
Less: Provision for impairment of amounts

due from associates (note (c))

& (#1at ()

FE W Bt 2 R FRIR (/fff‘if(b))
o B AT

IS

IR E

2016 2015
—E—R¥ —F-1%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx TET
2,128 1,890

483 -

(388) -

- (361)

(45) (41)

2,485 640
4,663 2,128
32,109 33,706
(24,188) (31,085)
7,921 2,621
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17 Interest in associates (Continued)
(@) Nature of investment in material associate as at
31st March 2016 and 2015.

Place of Percentage

business/country of ownership

Name of entity of incorporation interest

ERuE/ fhFA#®

ERsR ERSIER HREML

Hongkongmovie.com Company  Hong Kong 49%
Limited (“HKM”)

EEEYMRARLA(EHEY BB
:iwﬁmﬂj)

HKM is an unlisted limited liability company in Hong
Kong and there is no quoted market price available

for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group’s interests in associates.

Summarised financial information for material
associate

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
HKM which is accounted for using the equity method.
The information below reflects the amounts presented in
the financial statements of the associate — no difference
in accounting policies between the Group and the

associate.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

17 RREXFZHES @)

@ R=ZZBE-RER-ZZE-HFZ=AH
=t—R EEBMEQAREZM

BT o
Measurement

Nature of the relationship method
MEHE HERE
The associate provides playout, post Equity

production, HD-film restoration and channel

management services to the Group.
ZHE AR nARERAEN - BBEE [ 5

BEEYBEREEERRE

BERETRRR—BEEBELTE
RAR  HRDAEETISHRE -

BETA AN EEREE A R-E
mZRAEE

EXBELAFZCHMERABRE

UTHINBEEBEXRAGR AL

ARZHMBERNEE - ATERRBRR
FEDNEMBRRAEFI2EE — &
EEEZBEQATDCEAHELET
A e
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17 Interest in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information for material

associate (Continued)
Summarised balance sheet

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Revenue
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information of

the material associate presented to the carrying value of

the Group’s interest in associates.

Opening net assets/(liabilities) at 1st April
2015 and 2014

Profit for the year
Closing net assets at 31st March 2016 and

2015

Interest of 49% (2015: 49%) in associate

Interests in other associates

Carrying value as at 31st March 2016 and
2015

17 RBELRZER @)
EXBEATZMEREHEE (@)

BEERREE 2016 2015

—E—RE —E—FHEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiEiT FE T

FREEE 6,282 7,267

REEE 27,509 33,199

FERBARE (594) (1,067)

G II=RE (26,819) (38,087)

BEFEE 6,378 1,312

W= 24,265 26,074

FRFE 5,072 4,562

EHEWNEEEE 5,072 4,562
HMEITHBEZHIE

iR ©

R-ZB—HFR_ZF—INF
MA—RAZEHEE (&
&) F58

F R FHE

R-B-—AFER-Z-HF
ZRA=T-HZFREE
FE

REEE AT 2 49% R
(ZZE—FHF : 49%)
REAMEE N T 2R

RIE—RERZFT-—HF
=A=t—HB2ZEEE

2 ERBENT 2B ER B RS
AEBRBERNR 2R 2 REE Y

2016 2015
—e—xE —F-HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FExT
1,306 (3,256)
5,072 4,562
6,378 1,306
3,125 640
1,538 1,488
4,663 2,128
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17 Interest in associates (Continued) 17
(b) The amounts due from associates are denominated
in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

(c) The Group’s provision for impairment of amounts

RBMBAGIZHEE #)
(b) EWHEATRBEUBIHE B
W - RERREREMEE -

() AKBEEWEEDQRFERERE

due from associates are as follows: T

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-H%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FET

At 1st April 2015 and 2014 R-B-—RFER_ZET—NF
MA—H 31,085 31,085
Reversal of impairment (note 7) B R E (FfEFE7) (6,897) —

At 31st March 2016 and 2015 R-ZB-—ARER=ZZE—HF
=B=+—H 24,188 31,085

As at 31st March 2016, the provision of impairment
of HK$6,897,000 were reversed as the management
expects the impaired portion of these receivables to

be recoverable.

(d) In September 2014, the Group disposed of all its
22.7% interests in TR MH AR AT ([ FFze
5%8.]), an associate of the Company, with net book
value of NTD1,429,000 (equivalent to HK$361,000)
for a consideration of NTD2,535,000 (equivalent to
HK$641,000), resulting in gain on disposal of NTD
1,106,000 (equivalent to HK$280,000).
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HREEEESZERRAREZRE
HoBAKE MR=-_FT—<F=A
=+—B  HE#E#%6,897,0008TE
BE o

d R-Z-NFAR AEBEEHE
AREz—BBE AR — HE
EZRBRHOERAB(THHEEZR D)
ZEE22.7%ER FEAFES
1,429,000 # & % (48E 7 361,000
BI) o mHARES2,535,000
B (HHEN641,000/8 ) » BH
H & 2 3 1,106,000 3 & # (18
&4 280,00087T) °
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18 Interests in a joint venture and joint
operations

(a)

Interest in a joint venture

Interest in a joint venture, at cost
(note (i)

Share of loss (note (ii))

Amount due from a joint venture

Less: Provision for impairment of

(ii)

(Bt (i)

amount due from a joint venture B

This represents the Group’s 70% equity
interest in Guangdong Tung Ah Audio Video
Production Company Limited (“Tung Ah”). It
is an unlisted liability company in the PRC.
The Group’s control over Tung Ah is restricted
by a provision in the joint venture agreement
that requires unanimous approval by all
directors present for certain major decisions,
notwithstanding the Group having a majority
equity interest and the ability to appoint the
majority of directors. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have unilateral control over Tung Ah and
the equity method is used to account for its
investment therein.

The directors are of the opinion that the joint
venture is not material to the Group at 31st
March 2016 and 2015.

At 31st March 2016 and 2015, Tung Ah was
in a net liabilities position and the Group
has shared its loss up to the extent of its
investment cost of HK$1,083,000.

PR RS 1R (BaE (if)
El—BaERRER
o EREERARR

REE DR B  BRAE

e SRR MR

18 MEELFIRSEXEKC
B
(a) REBARZESR
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—1F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
1,083 1,083
(1,083) (1,083)
Q] 22,333 22,333
N IEE (B
(22,333) (22,333
() WHREEANEEMGEERR

(ii)

DEBHERRIA(RE
DN70%RE ZAAR
FERZFLTEERF A
EERRDZEHEZAE
1 — IRIR SRR - 7T 83
AEEHFERBOHRER
HEERZHES  BET

EZAETEHREREECE
E-HHtE Bl EER
B AEBYEEERTZ
EREEGE - IS
AEAREEEZRRZRE

EERAN=—FT-—R"ER=
F-RFE=ZRA=1+—-H &
BEARHAREMSLT
BKe

RZE—RERZZE—HF
=A=+—H '  REERNF
BEMRRE MAEEEUH
% & pZ 751,083,000 & 7T &
fhEEE -
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18 Interests in a joint venture and joint 18 MEELFIRSEXEEKL
operations (Continued) a2
(a) Interest in a joint venture (Continued) (a) MEBLRZER(E)
(i) There are no contingent liabilities and (i) BEEMNERAEEREGE
commitment relating to the Group’s interest in DA ZER 2B AE B RE

a joint venture. Also the Group did not have
commitment relating to its joint venture at 31st
March 2016 and 2015.

(b) Interests in joint operations (b)
The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements with certain independent third
parties to produce several films for exhibition
and distribution in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group has participating interests ranging from
20% to 80% in these joint operations. As at 31st
March 2016, the aggregate amounts of assets and
liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial
statements relating to the Group’s interests in these

joint operation arrangements are as follows:

Assets BE
Film rights, films in progress and film BEXRE  BEPEY
royalty deposits EEMERS

Trade receivable and other receivables £ 5 FEURFIE & H b fE UL 7R 1B

Liabilities fafE

Trade payable and other payables B 5 EAFIER H A S FIE
Revenue g

Expenses B

Loss after income tax MRETEHRER
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B -RZZE—RER=-ZF
—RF=A=+—H ' &&
ErEAEAEEESE AT
ZHELE o

REEBERBZHE

AEEEETBUE=HILET
EEERTH UREBEERE
B R PEIHRR R E1T o REBRZ
LREEBER20%E0N S
BHER  cRZE—RF=A=1—

H BEASERZESEERR

RN Re N ERRERZE
EREEHEENT :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-RF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FEx

92,107 40,380

987 3,440

93,094 43,820

(586) (1,322)

5,263 13,402

(15,308) (22,666)

(10,045) (9,264)
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19 Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have

been applied to the line items below:

Assets

At 31st March 2016
Available-for-sale financial assets
(note 21(a))
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from associates
(note 17)
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 21(b))

Pledged bank deposits (note 20(b))

Cash and cash equivalents (note 24)

RE

R-B—XEZA=+-8

HREENBER
(Hiit21(a)

ESRHtEKFE

FE Wi A R FOE
(Hizt17)

BRAREFABRRZ
BB ERE (M 21(b)

BIEARTER(HZ200))
BeRERBLEE (2 24)

=
ma

B RS R AR B T

19 BRNBSZMBEIR

B ITAECEFRREEARTS

£I1F :

Financial

Available- assets at

for-sale fair value

Loans and financial through
receivables assets profit or loss Total

®ORE

HERER A& HAREE
i3 ¢ ] HERE ZHBEE - hy
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
- 8,186 - 8,186
34,533 - - 34,533
7,921 - - 7,921
— - 42,254 42,254
23,500 - - 23,500
228,592 - - 228,592
294,546 8,186 42,254 344,986
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19 Financial instruments by category 19 BRENBIZMBEIR =)
(Continued)
Financial
Available- assets at
for-sale fair value
Loans and financial through
receivables assets  profit or loss Total
BAR
X e FABRER
WA nKEE - <UBEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
T FAx FE FE
Assets BE
At 31st March 2015 A_E-AF=A=1+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets At HENRBER
(note 21(a)) (Hizt21(a) - 6,149 - 6,149
Trade and other receivables B5 REMERHE 30,780 - - 30,780
Amounts due from associates FELSEE & N RIFUE
(note 17) (&t 17) 2,621 - - 2,621
Financial assets at fair value through R AAEFABGERZ
profit or loss (note 21(b)) M EE(MzE21(b) - - 40,367 40,367
Pledged bank deposits (note 20(b)) BEARITERMZ20b)) 23,500 - - 23,500
Cash and cash equivalents (note 24) ~ B&RZERBELEE (ff£24) 32,074 - - 32,074
88,975 6,149 40,367 135,491
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19 Financial instruments by category 19 BENBISZMEIR @)
(Continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
B E
SR
MBERR
HK$°000
FEIT
Liabilities R
At 31st March 2016 R-E—XRFE=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 29(a)) B& (ffat29(a)) 10,012
Obligations under finance leases (note 29(b)) mERNEE(HZF290)) 250
Trade and other payables (note 28) g 5 R H M RIE (FZE28) 102,625
112,887
At 31st March 2015 R-E—hF=HA=+—H
Borrowings (note 29(a)) 5 & (ffaF29(a)) 52,787
Obligations under finance leases (note 29(b)) mMERNEE(HZ290)) 419
Trade and other payables (note 28) B 5 Rk H A ESFRIE (K 28) 64,402
117,608
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i E TS AR TR

20 Credit quality of financial assets 20 MBEEECEHER
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither HARBHIREZMBEEEZFEERER
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference ASENBEEFR(NB)REBLES
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical HERR 2 BEEREITEM !

information about counterparty default rates:

(@) Trade receivables (a)
Counterparties without external WIS BTN S
credit rating
— Existing customers with no — BAENEERLEZ
defaults in the past BEEF
(b) Pledged bank deposits (b)

Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {EEFR(ELEEHE)
A-1 A-1

Hong Kong dollar-denominated balances as at 31st
March 2016 represent fixed term deposits placed in
commercial banks in Hong Kong that are pledged
against the banking facilities granted to the Group.
Please refer to note 29(a)(iii) for further details of the

arrangement.
At 31st March 2016, the weighted average effective

interest rate per annum of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits is 0.6% (2015: 0.5%).
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BB %R

2016 2015
ot N —E-FHEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
9,907 4,971

BEFRITER
2016 2015
—B-RF =
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
23,500 23,500

R-E—XRE=ZA=+—HUBR
BBz FETFHRAEBHER
TREMER  BEFIEATES
FIERRITEEZER - &THZ
#— S B ESEMEE 29(a)(iii) ©

R-EB—XRE=B=+—0  &&
EEERRTERZMEFIGER
FERNRE0BE(ZZE—FHFE:05
E) -
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20 Credit quality of financial assets

(Continued)

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s)
A-1
A-2

Cash on hand

21 Financial assets

(@) Available-for-sale financial assets

At 1st April 2015 and 2014

Addition
Disposal
Fair value gains transfer to equity

— net

At 31st March 2016 and 2015

Available-for-sale financial assets

include the following:

Equity securities listed in Hong

Kong, at market value

e AR R MR
20 MBEREZCEEER 2

(c) BeRERARSRHAE

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FiET
EEFR(ELEEE)
A-1 227,756 29,146
A-2 519 2,532
ErES 317 397
228,592 32,075
21 MBERE
(a) "WHHEMBEE
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
RIE—RFR-_ZT—OF
mA—H 6,149 3,029
BN 1,200 —
HE (10,984) —
EEBEER A RERS
— 35 11,821 3,120
RIZE—RER-ZE-HF
=A=+—H 8,186 6,149
AEHENKEERERE
THI&IE :
BB LLHRARS  BHE
8,186 6,149
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21 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated
in HK$.

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group
made an impairment of HK$1,150,000 on available-
for-sale financial assets (2015: HK$49,000). The
amount was released from equity and recognised
in other (losses)/gains — net in the consolidated
income statement (note 6).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Listed securities, at market value:
— Equity securities — Hong Kong

— Equity securities — UK

At 31st March 2016, certain financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$22,977,000 (2015:
HK$18,410,000) were pledged as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29(a)
(iv)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented within investing activities in the cash
flow statement.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included in “other (losses)/
gains — net” in the consolidated income statement
(note 6).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

EmES - mHE:
—RAFHF-BE
—RAR S —RE

21 MESEE®)

(a)

(b)

HHEMBERE(F)
AHHEMKEELBTIIE -

BE-_Z-—X"F=A=+—H1L
FER AEERUHEE0HKE
EEEHRET,150,00078 T (=
Z—FF :49,000/87T) ° KEH
EaEE TRGEERER2ZHE
f (E18) Wam — F R (e
6) °

BOREHARSIRZMBARE
2016 2015
—E—R¥ —ZT-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FE&r FET
41,639 39,545
615 822
42,254 40,367

RZE—AR"F=A=+—8 k@A
WEA22,977,0008 T(=ZE—H
F : 18,410,000 BT) 2 & TEA
AREFABRRZUBEEDERA
EAAREBEMERRTEEZER
(FtzE29(a)(iv)) °

BAREHABRRZUBEED
RREREBREINDBREED -

BARERABERZUBEEZ
DAERB I AGERERZ
[HA(EE) / Wk —F8 (M
6) °

FERAES 2 A ARERBHEINE
Bz BITEAENE -
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Inventories

Finished goods
Less: provision for obsolete inventories

22

R

. REFERE

The cost of inventories recognised as expense

and included in “cost of sales”

in the consolidated

income statement amounted to HK$1,386,000 (2015:
HK$1,158,000) (note 7). A reversal of provisions for
HK$88,000 (2015: HK$114,000) for obsolescence of

inventories has been included in “cost of sales”

consolidated income statement (note 7).

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of trade

receivables

Trade receivables — net
Prepayments

Other receivables and deposits

Less: other receivables and deposits -

non-current portion

Current portion

in the

23 RERRMEBUKRIEA

85 B

- B 5 RWIRRERE

E5RWFR — F8
BN FRE
Hit WA R RS

. BfEWREREE —
FRBID

TEER S

8

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

3,785 3,901
(3,669) (3,757)

116 144

BRBMI AT AGRERBERMHER

RIzHFE
_ﬁﬂz

S X 28 £ 1,386,00078 T (==
1,158,000 JT ) (fff 3£ 7)

REFE 2 EHERDS88,0008T(=F

—hRE:

114,000 Bt) Bt AGZEUN
k2 SHERA (MEET)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FExT
37,984 46,323
(22,423) (34,910)
15,561 11,413
1,052 744
17,920 18,623
34,533 30,780
(5,661) (5,960)
28,872 24,820
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23 BOREMBIRIE =)

23 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values (2015: same).

At 31st March 2016, trade and other receivables
are unsecured and interest-free, except for an other
receivable of HK$4,830,000 (2015: HK$5,138,000) which
is interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate plus 2%
per annum (2015: same) and secured by (i) first legal
charge over a property in Hong Kong with fair value of
approximately HK$12,020,000 (2015: HK$14,437,000);
and (i) a separate all moneys guarantee and indemnity
executed by a third party individual (2015: same),
of which HK$4,501,000 (2015: HK$4,830,000) is not
repayable within the next twelve months as at the

balance sheet date.

The credit terms to trade receivables generally range
from 7 to 90 days (2015: same).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

date is as follows:

BEZE=1EA
4 to 6 months PO 75 E B
Over 6 months BB E A

Current to 3 months

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

EZRAMEBYFEZREEREEDR
ERE(ZZ2—HF  E) °

R-ZZE-—R"E=ZRA=+—H  B5
REMERREABRERARREE
4,830,000 (= & — & F:
5,138,000 7t ) 2 H ft F& Yt X 18
DREBREEMNEMECC=Z
—HE:HARE)FE BUGDAE
# 12,020,000 T(= & — & F :
14,437,000 8B T) 2B BYHEZE —E
EHRE RNF=ZABIATEIZH
VYRHEEREBAERFB(CE—HF:
R ER A - H A 4,501,000 (=
ZT—FE :4,830,00087T) FTEREE
B&E+—{EARNEE-

S RBREZEER - RN F7E90
B(ZZ—HF : RE) -

I

\

EEWRERRZEAYZIRE DA
T

2016 2015
—B-RF —F-HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
11,781 8,332
1,450 3,081
24,753 34,910
37,984 46,323
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23 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 23 BOREMBIKRIE =)
At 31st March 2016, trade receivables of HK$5,654,000 R-B-RE=HF=+—H B5kE
(2015: HK$6,442,000) were past due but not impaired. W FRIE 5,654,000 BL(ZZE—HF :
These relate to a number of independent customers for 6,442,000 &70) EBHEERBE - 25
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing EWRIEEZ ZWEIAHERNCE B
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: VYEFER - ZZEZERFIEZRER
MM :

2016 2015
—B—R¥F —ZE-4fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Up to 3 months =EAR 3,324 3,361
Over 3 months 8B =18 A 2,330 3,081
5,654 6,442
At 31st March 2016, trade receivables of HK$22,423,000 R-ZZB-RF=ZA=+—-H BZER
(2015: HK$34,910,000) were impaired and fully provided FIE 22,423,000 B x(=ZF — HF !
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to 34,910,000 Bx)ERERZHEE -
a long-outstanding customer, which is in unexpectedly BRI BEERZGEFEHE - FREAZR

difficult financial situation. LUz R & REAR F AR -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other AEEESREMEWRIE ZREET)

receivables are denominated in the following currencies: LT HEMSIE :

2016 2015
ZB—R¥F —E-hfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFRET FET
HK$ BT 21,509 15,186
RMB AR 11,175 12,896
NTD b=t 1,849 2,698
34,533 30,780

149



150

NOTES TO THEICONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERR MR

23 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 23
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:
At 1st April 2015 and 2014 RZE—RAFR-FT—OF

MA—H

BOREMEBIYRIE 2)
REEE 5 BB R ERE > 280
T

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of & 3 FEUWFIERE (E) B

trade receivables

Exchange difference fEH =258
At 31st March 2016 and 2015 RIBE—ARERZZE—FHEF
=R=+-H

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in administrative

expenses in the consolidated income statement (note 7).
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand RITREFES
Short-term bank deposits EHASRITERK

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

2016 2015
—B—-R¥ —E-FHEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
34,910 23,385
(12,154) 11,525
(333) =
22,423 34,910

ERERKFERE 2RI RERE T
AFEWER(ME7)ERITHREASX —

RERAZESFERRA LHZEE
W sRE 2 BREE ©

24 BeRERARKNHE

2016 2015
—F—R¥F -
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT TET
227,833 31,427
759 647
228,592 32,074




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

following currencies:

HKS$
RMB
SGD
NTD
uUsD

BT
ARE
I T
ek

E

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the

following for the purposes of the consolidated cash flow

statement:

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts (note 29)

RERERREER
RITBEX (BE29)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.7% (2015: 0.5%) per annum as at 31st March

2016. These deposits have an average maturity of 182

days (2015: 69 days).

e SRR MR

24 BReRFRAREHE @)
REREFREER UTHIEMFIE

2016 2015
—E-RE¥ —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
204,412 4,869
18,070 23,070

14 14

5,931 3,761

165 360
228,592 32,074

REERERERMS  BHE - SRR
EHREARBRITEZBEUTRIEA

2016 2015
—g—x% —E-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
228,592 32,074

- (17,337)

228,592 14,737

%:E—ﬁ$5ﬁ3+—a’ﬁ%ﬂ”
ER2EBRFNERR0TE(ZZ—H
FI05FE) %% ﬁ¥k2$ﬂﬂﬂfsﬁﬁ%
182 H(=Z—H4%F :690) °
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25 Share capital and premium 25 BRERRE
(a) Share capital (a) B&&
2016 2015
—2-RE “2-1%F

Number of Number of

shares shares

Bi#E KEE
’000 HK$°000 000 HK$’000
Fi FRT FiE FET

Authorised EE

Ordinary share of HK$0.02 SRHE{EO0.02E T
each ZEZ @R 15,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 300,000

Issued and fully paid ERTRHAE

Ordinary share of HK$0.02 SREEO0.028 T

each ZEBR 5,923,739 118,475 5,633,035 112,661
(b) Share premium (b) BRiBEIE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share premium B& 10 s E 407,428 126,733

152 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 4 & 51 & B B bR 2 &
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25 Share capital and premium (Continued)
(b) Share premium (Continued)
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued

share capital and share premium is as follows:

At 1st April 2014, 31st March R-E—NEMBA—H - =
2015 and 1st April 2015 Z-AF=ZA=t—-BK

—E-HRFMA—H
Issue of shares (Note i) B& 10 84T (Brati)
Issue of shares on exercise of HITEEREMEETZ
share options (Note ii) BB (HEEii)
At 31st March 2016 R _E—XRFE=A=+—H

Note:

(i) On 27th July 2015, the Company allotted
and issued 280,000,000 shares at the price
of HK$1 per share raising gross proceeds
of HK$280,000,000. Issuance expenses of
HK$3,126,000 was netted off against share
premium.

(i)  During the year, a total of 10,704,000 (2015:
nil) shares were issued at the exercise price of
HK$0.7 per ordinary share with total proceeds
of approximately HK$7,493,000 pursuant to the
exercises of the share options under the share
option scheme.

25 BRERRE =)

(b) BRIPREE
ADRRBTRARBEBHE 2D

EHREHINAT :

Number of
shares in Share Share
issue capital premium

BT
Bin & E & Bin&E
’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR FETT FET
5,633,035 112,661 126,733
280,000 5,600 271,274
10,704 214 9,421
5,923,739 118,475 407,428

Hiat -

(i)

RZE—FHFLHA=++tA -
AAT S REE1E Tl
% %% 97 280,000,000 & B 13
£ 5 P8 FIE 4458 280,000,000
& 7T ° %17 & F3,126,000 8
TERRMDEERHIH o

R E R # 210,704,000 %
BB (ZE2—FF: E)RE
BRESTBETEREZITHE
BRERTERO7TBITZITE
BFLUET BESBENA

7,493,000 JT °
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26 Share-based payments

The Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014. Under the scheme,
72,800,000 options were granted on 29th September
2014 at the exercise price of HK$0.7 per share. Of the
options granted, 30% vested on 29th March 2015, 30%
vested on 29th September 2015 and the remaining 40%
vested on 29th March 2016. Each share option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the

Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

are as follows:

At beginning of the year FM
Granted Eidun
Forfeited 1% U
Exercised 1IfE
At end of the year FER

As at 31st March 2016, all outstanding options were
exercisable and 10,704,000 options were exercised
during the year. Share options outstanding at the end of

the year will be expired on 28th September 2017.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

26 LI RBRZ™R

AANBR-ZE—NFNA—BETZRRE
BERECHERTM—BRETE([Z
P&l D) o RIEZETE > 72,800,000 17 B
BRER-_Z—NFAA=-THAARYE 1T
FEAEBRO7ET FIRECBERES
Fo30%R-_E—HE=A=-1+NBE
B 30%R=-ZB—FFEANA=1tHhBER
B BT40%R=—Z—XRF=ZR=1THh
HERE - BHBRER T8 ARFZE
RATZ—REBR -

EARTEZBREHESBWOT :

No. of share options
Year ended 31st March
MERRIES H
BE=A=+—HL=FE
2016 2015
—2—-R¥F —E-AfF

71,220,000 =
- 72,800,000
(2,844,000) (1,580,000)
(10,704,000) =

57,672,000 71,220,000

R=-ZB-—XE=ZA=+—8 " FfEHX
TEZEREBRER T/ b
10,704,000 1 BB IR EE RERITHE « F
RERTEZEBREER-_Z—LFN
B=+\BZIHH-
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Share-based payments (Continued)

The weighted average fair value of options determined
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was HK$0.21361
per option. The significant inputs into the model were
share price of HK$0.61 at the grant date, exercise price
of HK$0.70, volatility of 61.64%, dividend yield of 0.00%,
an expected option life of three years, and a risk-free

interest rate of 0.94%.

The total expenses for share options of HK$6,124,000
(2015: HK$8,482,000) are recognised as “employee
benefit expenses” in the consolidated income statement
(Note 11).

e SRR MR

26 LIlfRBRZM®R @)

BREZNEFEHYAARBIA=ER
HETEE EBEE SHBERENSR
0213618 T  KERXNZ2ETE@W AHK
BEARHEBHZREO6I BT 176
fB0.708 T - K 1E61.64% B B =
0.00% > B BREGXH=FRER
BRRIZ0.94% ©

B8 AR #E B X 44 %6 6,124,00058 T (=
— R : 8,482,000/ T) RS W E &K
ZIEEEABEXZ |(HEFE11)PER -

Reserves 27 %
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-4fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
Share redemption reserve % 17 BB B {4 8 12 12
Contributed surplus (note (ii) WABER (BT (i) 189,009 189,009
Exchange difference BE 5 =28 4,358 2,102
Buildings revaluation reserve BFEH#E 71,464 70,180

Available-for-sale financial assets

revaluation reserve ARHEVMBEEEMHE 7,119 4,702
Share-based payment reserve DUt B ERE 2 A # 12,178 8,482
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings  (Z:tE5E) 1REER (50,774) 15,128
233,366 289,615
()  Movements of each component of the reserves are set iy RFESIOZLBANSEERE

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)  The contributed surplus of the Group represents the (ii)
credit arising from the reduction of share capital during
the year ended 31st March 1999, and the transfer
from share premium during the year ended 31st March

2010.

Bk o

FEBZHAR

BREREE

—hANF=ZR=Z+—-BLEFE
HBRARBZ-Z-—FF=A
=T-HEFEERERMEER

BEEZER -
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The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is

as follows:

28 Trade and other payables 28 BORHEMEMRIE
2016 2015
—E—R¥E —E-ffF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Trade payables B S EMAFE 7,312 5,204
Other payables and accruals Hii e RIER EE R 95,313 59,198
102,625 64,402

BEZRNRERRZEASZRE DA

T

2016 2015
—E—RFE —E—FHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current to 3 months ENEZ =18 A 5,238 3,367
4 to 6 months P2 <@ A 245 142
Over 6 months BRI {E B 1,829 1,695
7,312 5,204
MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 58 #% MEBBRA T



28 Trade and other payables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and

29

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk R

other payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
RMB
USD
NTD

Borrowings and obligations under

finance leases

Bank overdrafts, secured

Secured bank loans — current portion

Bank borrowings — current portion
Secured bank loans — non-current

portion

Total borrowings (note(a))

Obligations under finance leases (note(b)) BIEMRL E & (F7E (b))

— Current portion

— Non-current portion

28 BORHEMEMRE =)

AEBES REMEMNFIEZREE
HENAERE  WATHEEDIE :

2016 2015

—ZE—-R¥E —E—FE

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ETT FET

BT 29,243 22,743

ARHE 72,915 40,975

EYH 113 563

e 354 121

102,625 64,402

29 fEEEMEHEAVAR

2016 2015

ZE—RE —E-hF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

RTEX  BIKF - 17,337

BERARTER — REED 1,337 25,136

RITEE — REBEIHD 1,337 42,473
BIRFRTER — EREBED

8,675 10,314

BB HE (M (@) 10,012 52,787

— REZHD 175 169

— EREID 75 250

250 419
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29 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases (Continued)
(a) Borrowings

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year 15K
Between 1 to 2 years 1Z22FR
Between 2 to 5 years 2Z5F R
Later than 5 years 5% %

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
NTD e

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 4 & 51 & B B bR 2 &

29 fEERMFHENAER=)

(a)

B8

AEBEEARTIIHBEE :

2016 2015
—F—R¥F —E-RfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx TET
1,337 42,473
1,353 1,367
4,232 4,270
3,090 4,677
10,012 52,787

FEBERBEZREBEATIEE

B :
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FREIT T
— 41,137
10,012 11,650
10,012 52,787
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29 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases (Continued)
(@) Borrowings (Continued)
At 31st March 2016, banking facilities amounting to
HK$77,220,000 (2015: HK$77,636,000) granted by

banks to the Group are secured by the following:

(i) legal charges over certain of the Group’s
freehold land and certain buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$20,936,000
(2015: HK$21,646,000) (note 13(c)) and certain
of the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$56,049,000
(2015: HK$59,155,000) (note 15(b));

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the

Company;

(i) pledged bank deposits of HK$23,500,000
(2015: HK$23,500,000) of the Group (note
20(b)).

(iv) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$22,977,000 (2015: HK$18,410,000)
of the Group (note 21(b)).

At 31st March 2016, the Group’s bank borrowing
bears an interest rate at 2.0% per annum and is

denominated in NTD.

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their

carrying amounts at 31st March 2016 and 2015.

e SRR MR

29 fEERMEHENAR=)

(a)

BEE)
RZE—RE=A=+—H £
A77,220,000/8 T(=ZZF — F F :

77,636,0007870) ZRITEEC R
TRFAESR » LR T/ERR :

() BREE4 520,936,00058
T(ZZE—HF : 21,646,000
BRL)ZEAEBEFT KA
XL RETEFE
H13c) REEHMELZALR
56,049,000 T(= T — &
% : 59,155,000 70 ) A EH
2&E T IREM (M 15(0))
ZEERRE

(i) AABEYLZNFER

iy *EBEDLHEFRTERX
23,500,000 T(= & — &
% : 23,500,000 5 ) (Fff &5F
20(b)) ;

vy XEERQABABER
2 B EE 22,977,000 78 7T
(Z = — H % 18,410,000
B 7t) (MiEE21(b)) ©

R=ZZF-X"F=RA=+—-0 &
Bz RITEERFRNR2.0E
KA B WEEHE -

om A

b=1113

RZEBE—RERZZE—FHF=HA
=+t—H BEZAAEHEAERT
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29 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases (Continued)
(b) Obligations under finance leases
The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the
lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities

by the Group.

Gross finance lease liabilities —
minimum lease payments: FIE

— 1 F®

— 1 F&E5FRA

— No later than 1 year
— Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years

Future finance charges on finance RIERA Z KRR H
leases
Present value of finance lease MEENEBZRE

liabilities

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as

follows:

— No later than 1 year —15FR
— Later than 1 year and no later than — 1 %185 &K

5 years

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 4 & 51 & B B bR 2 &

BREAVNEELE — REAY

MEHAVAR

29 fEERMFHENAER=)

FEEERBHEGH H HYWEE

ZENBETHEA -

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—FHE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

181 180

75 256

256 436

(6) (17)

250 419

BMEANEEZREZHAOT :

2016 2015
—B-XE C—B-EH%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
175 169

75 250

250 419
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30 Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis. The analysis of deferred income tax

assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12 months ~ FiiEf&EE

Deferred income tax liabilities to be

FriEBiaE

crystallised after more than 12
months

Deferred income tax liabilities — net

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is

as follows:

At 1st April 2015 and 2014
mA—H
Tax charged to the consolidated income
statement (note 9)
Tax charged to other comprehensive

income
Exchange differences fE 5 =28
At 31st March 2016 and 2015 R-ZEB—RER=Z—
=A=+—H

EEFFEHAR — B8

RIE—RFER-FT—NF

REfM2E KSR KA

e SRR MR

30 EIEFRIFI

fieh 75 44k 55 38 1) A 1T RE R A6 BD A AT 1S 8
EEHENMMEHAERE - BIELMH
SHEEREGHERE -—HBEKED — &
FTEERBNERBRZAEHEE
MERBEEESRRFRELELERE

SEIE P89 B R I T8 i B B A4
mF

HEREE 12 EARWE ZIELE

HRBEB12 MRAREBRZEL

2016 2015
—®—x% —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(3,543) (3,586)
26,041 25,959
22,498 22,373

ELEFAEHRIRE 2 F2BMT -

RGEWERNR BB MZI)

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—FHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
22,373 20,751

28 243

311 1,379

(214) -
22,498 22,373
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets

and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2014

Charged to the consolidated

income statement
Charged to other

comprehensive income

At 31st March 2015
Charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income

statement
Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2016

R-ZE-—NEWNE—H
R &SRR

RE b 2 E W & R

R-Z2-HAF=A=t+—-H
RizalERNBR(GTA)

RE b2 E Y R
ER=H

RZIE—XRE=A=+—H

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

30 EEERREM 7
FEARHER 2 MB e RE R E s
CEREEFIEREERAGEEH N

I;iE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T :
BIEFRBSRAR
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gains Total
MERERE LRERR et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FExT
5,680 18,682 24,362
56 162 218
— 1,379 1,379
5,736 20,223 25,959
51 (66) (15)
— 311 311
— (214) (214)
5,787 20,254 26,041
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued) 30 BIEFRFR =2
Deferred income tax assets BEFRBREE
Tax losses
REGR
2016 2015
—B-RF —E-AfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FET
At 1st April 2015 and 2014 R-E—HFR-F—WF
[MA—H (3,586) (3,611)
Charged to the consolidated income REizEWE R MR
statement 43 25
At 31st March 2016 and 2015 R-EBE-—RER-ZE-—HF=HA
Er=1 (3,543) (3,586)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax AR EBEENDREARBNRES
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation Al REE B *HEFE%%%%J T UBRE
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits ARERAELEMEREE  ~5H
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of BARMERBIERE411,143,000 & T
HK$411,143,000 (2015: HK$359,524,000) that can be (=% — 5 F : 359,524,000 jt ) 1]
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax HEDIEERRZERBTBA - AR
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of TEHEEERETER  RILB|ER
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date, ZEREEE ZESBEEFBLEE
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$89,388,000 59 H - 89,388,000/ T(Z&E—HF :
(2015: HK$72,079,000) which will be expired within 5 72,079,000 ) 2 B IEE B R A F
years. A EIE o
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RRERAGREZERARGZ

31 Cash generated from operations 31 EEMERA:
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a)
used in operations HIR
2016
—E-R%¥
HK$°000
FHET
Loss before income tax FREFSBIATE B (70,502)
Adjustments for: KAz
Amortisation of leasehold land FRE & i K £ tth {5 P AE S 8
and land use rights (note 12) (Hiazt 12) 788
Depreciation of property, plant M - MR RRIETE
and equipment (note 13) (MtaE13) 15,952
Gain on disposal of property, HENFE  MERREZ
plant and equipment (see below) g (RTF30) -
Fair value losses/(gains) on REWMESH 2 ANRERE
revaluation of investment (W) (Hiat 15)
properties (note 15) 10,441
Amortisation of film rights (note 16) TS/ REE S (H1:E 16) 22,617
Provision for impairment of film EXRERBHEPESY
rights and films in progress WAE R (HL 16)
(note 16) 17,904
Share of profit of associates BiREiE AR RE(AE 17)
(note 17) (2,485)
(Reversal of)/provisions for trade B RIIE (), BE
receivables (12,154)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEAHEENKERE 2 W&
sale financial assets (note 6) (K1z£6) (10,554)
Impairment loss on available-for- AMHEMKEE 2 REEBE
sale financial assets (note 21(a)) (H1zE21(a) 1,150
Gain on disposal of investment HEBRE QA RRE 2 WE
in an associate (note 17(d)) (KiaE17(d)) -
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial &2Q AEFTABRERZ
assets at fair value through profit BHREEZARBEERE (I
or loss (note 6) =) (Kt 6) 14,349

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

2015
—E—FHE
HK$’000
FET

(39,224)

787

16,312

(145)

(7,603)

16,185

2,082

(640)

11,525

49

(280)

(6,676)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 Cash generated from operations 31 BEEmRTBAE& =
(Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) MRFEMAGEREZEEMAREZ
used in operations (Continued) HiR(E)
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-4fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Reversal of obsolescence of REFEERRE (Kt 7)
inventories (note 7) (88) (114)
Share-based payment expense DR th B B 2 AR BE
(note 26) (K1aE26) 6,124 8,482
Interest income (note 8) FEWA (B 8) (1,066) (1,321)
Interest expense on loans and ERREXZNEEX (KfE8)
overdrafts (note 8) 535 907
Interest element of finance leases  FE L~ R B4 (F75%8)
(note 8) 11 9
Amortisation of other intangible HihmF EE#es (f2E14)
assets (note 14) - 201
Reversal of provision for amounts  FEURERE A B FUIE 2 BB E R
due from an associate (et 17(c))
(note 17(c)) (6,897) —
Impairment of other intangible Hit@mp EERE(MZE7)
assets (note 7) 146 =
Exchange losses & H & 6,981 -
Changes in working capital: EESSEE .
Inventories FE 112 52
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HE A EWFIE 7,748 (19,098)
Amounts due from associates FEUE & X B SRR 1,597 4,443
Trade and other payables B S R EMEMRRIE (8,711) (2,833)
Receipts in advance FEURRIE 756 625
Cash used in operations ZETHIES (246) (16,275)
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31 Cash generated from operations 31 EEMBBREL#
(Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) BB RABEEEERAREZ
used in operations (Continued) HiR(E)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds RIEEHEERERA  HEWE -
from disposal of property, plant and equipment MBS R B 2 TS IEBLE ¢
comprise:
2016 2015
—EB—-R¥F —E-hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net book amount (note 13) BRMEFHE (A7t 13) 73 2
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEY - WERREZ
and equipment (note 7) s (Kt 7) - 145

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEY¥ - #3221
plant and equipment Z T8 RIE 73 147
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e SRR MR

On 13th April 2011, the Company received a writ of
summons and a statement of claim, which was amended on
12th October 2012, with no specified amount of the amount
of damages being claimed by a third party in respect of
alleged fraudulent breaches relating to the management of
an associated company which is under liquidation.

The directors of the Company, after taking advice from
the legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, consider such claim is not strong,
and the Company has a good chance to defend its
position. In this regard, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate any material liabilities would arise from
this litigation and there would be no material impact
to the financial statements of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st March 2015 and 2016.

31 Cash generated from operations 31 BEEmRTBAE& =
(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) FAMEBTEHIIN
Obligations
Bank loans under finance leases
BMITER MEANAR
2016 2015 2016 2015
—Z-REF —EZ-Wm§ ZZ-HFE —EZ-0OF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FEIT FET
At 1st April 2015 and 2014 RIZE-—HEFER
“Z-NENA—H 35,450 30,289 419 -
Proceeds from bank loans BITERZFERA 7,000 14,800 - -
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (32,327) (9,601) - —
Inception of finance lease HERMERY - - - 515
Repayments of capital element {EEFERLY
of finance leases N o) - = (169) (96)
Exchange differences ENER (111) (38) - -
At 31st March 2016 and 2015 RZZE—~ER
—E-RF
=R=t-H 10,012 35,450 250 419
32 Contingencies 32 HARAR

R-Z——FMA+T=H KATEE
FERBRLBETeH2ENSMRER
ERAZE(R=-ZFE—-F+A+T=HEK
B:])  HPEE=F BB ERPHE
ARIBEEEZIEBRFTAZIEBEEE
CHRHERREESRE o

ARRESERNGERER(EEZEE
AFAEERR BREZERER  ABF
HRREEES  HAARAHERS
RENSRE BUMS F2AES
YA RPALFASBEEANERES
HUHBE—_ZT-AFK-FT-—~F=A
=t—HIEFEAXARTzBMBHRERAK
SEZHREMBHRRPEEALE -
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33 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Film rights, films in progress and BEME BEFEY

film royalty deposits REZRERE
Investments (note (a)) RE (B1EE (a)
Licenses hR#E

(@)

In August 2014, the Group entered into agreements
to set up joint ventures, MREXZHRREEEER
RA([EEFEA]) and BREAXDIREREES
E(BRER)[E£XXD(BREE)]). As at 31st
March 2016, the Group had a financial commitment
of RMB49,500,000 (equivalent to HK$59,237,000) in
respect of unpaid capital contributions to these joint
ventures, which represented the Group’s 49.5% equity
interests in £XEGEHEREH (2015 RMB49,900,000,
equivalent to HK$62,300,000, being the Group’s 40%
and 49.5% equity interests in £3%848 and &X 3%
BHEREE respectively).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

33 BXRIE
RBEBROITNEREE > EAPE
W

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
63,572 66,405
59,237 62,320
5,152 —
127,961 128,725

(@)

R=ZZ—NFENA  KEBFTLH
BURLGEDNARREEHRR
EEEARAATEEERDEK
MREXETERREESOE
(BEREB)[XEZT(ERE
B)])  c R=FB—RNE=A=1+—8 -
FEEREZESE R AMEL 2K
FTHEEE AR 49,500,000 7T
(18 & 1 59,237,000% 7t ) = B
EiE HERAKEERESHKED
EREBI95% ZBRE(—Z—1
F . AR 49,900,000 7T (HE R
62,300,00087T) » HERAKEE
REXFEREXETEREES
Bl 40% K% 49.5% Z BRHE) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Operating lease commitments

(a)

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases certain offices and premises
in respect of its theatre operations under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 to 20 years, and the majority
of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

Within 1 year 15R

Later than 1 year and no later than 1&E#&{B5ERX
5 years

Later than 5 years 5%#%

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$8,477,000 (2015: HK$8,386,000) (note 7).

e SRR MR

34 EEHPKIE

(a)

BREHPAE — EREBEA
AEBRHELREBRETTH
HREHNBREEETHAE
Yo BN F1E20F BX
HR 42 30 40175 3 AT AR B R B2 35 0K
FEM o RIBT AT HERERIX
T2 AREEESLENT ¢

2016 2015
—E—R¥ —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FTHET
6,352 5,816
25,513 26,254
71,163 77,034
103,028 109,104

REBEEZE-—RE=ZHF=+—
BLEEE AEEFHRHESBEX
8,477,000/ (= & — & F:
8,386,000/ T ) sl Y R EHAN &
BE(BIEET) ©
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34 Operating lease commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties to
certain tenants under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between
2 to 4 years. The future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:

Within 1 year 15K
Later than 1 year and no later than 1&#&{B5FRK

5 years

As at 31st March 2016 and 2015, the Company
did not have any significant commitments under

operating leases.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 4 & 51 & B B bR 2 &

36 EEHVRIE =)

(b)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEHVRRE — ERHEA

REEREA 7T

REENRH

mETRFLALRENE B
BN T2 4% o RIS AT RS
ERORRZ AR ERSEEN

T

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-—HF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
4,448 5,321

952 5,397
5,400 10,718

RZEBE-—RERZZE—HEFE=H
=+—H  AAFATEFAEARL

EHAEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 Related party transactions

Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated

financial statements,

significant related party

transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Sales of services

Rental income received/receivable

from rental of office premises to

an associate

Management fee income received/

receivable from an associate

HERAZUETHEQT
e,z FHE WA

WER,FE W A E
ZEBBWA

Sales of services are transacted at normal

commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all customers.

Purchases of services

Post-production and origination
services paid/payable to an
associate

Playout services paid/payable to
an associate

Other administrative costs paid/

payable to an associate

35 &K

BA/ B FHEAT

ZRRER R AR

BB THE
Z B HUR S

BN/ BN THELD

Z EABITBURA

/)

NG|

3

e SRR MR

HEALERS

BRAGREMBRERAMMEMIKEE

S ARERAREBBRPETZE

AEBEBALRZOT :
(a) SHEERRTS

2016 2015

—2—-RF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

734 734

245 245

979 979

(b)

HERBDREBRERRAEREF
Z —REEIRFE

5 o

LT
2016 2015
—g-XE —B-I1F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHT
8,850 9,467
4,068 4,240
400 400
13,318 14,107
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35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purchases of services (Continued)
Purchases of services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are deemed to
be the members of the Board of Directors of
the Group who have the responsibility for the
planning, directing, controlling and the execution
of the activities of the Group. Key management
compensation is disclosed in note 39(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases

of services

Receivables from associates FEUR B E DB RIB (AL 17)

(note 17)

36 Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a

dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2016
(2015: nil).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

35

36

FREALTZ S =)

(b) MERE(E)
5 PR 5 T 3% 14 P PR A B 144 B
B2 — MR EIEEEST o

(c) XEEEBARMS
FTEEBAEEIRALRERES
BRE HEEESTE EBR
EHRATAEEZER - TEE
BAEMSEREMBRERMET
39(a) HIE

(d BNt WERBEEZFERER

2016 2015
—F—R%F —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT TET
7,921 2,621

e
EETERKBBE_ZT—~E=A
=St ALEFEZRE(ZE—HF:
]) o

Fanyy



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37 SEEE — EEMNEATR
THAR-ZZE—AR"EF=A=+—Hz=E

37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st

March 2016: EMBARBE :
Percentage of
Particulars of effective interest
Place of issued share capital/ held/controlled
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
ERTRE/ FEEBE /26
i o M S R FERE EMEFHEE CENERARL
Shares held directly by the Company:
FRRERRARN
Mei Ah Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 50,050 ordinary shares of 100
US$1 each
ABRLES REER 50,050 RERAE 1 £ 7T
ZEBR
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
FLFREGARN -
Brilliant Idea Group Limited Hong Kong Production of films and 10,000 ordinary shares 95
tele-features of HK$1 each
ATEHEUEBRAR B HEEYRERY 10,000 REREE 1B
ZEER
Cameron Entertainment Company Limited Hong Kong Production of films and 2 ordinary shares 100
tele-features of HK$1 each
SEREBRAT ) REEYRERY K 2REBRAE1ETZERR
G major Limited Hong Kong Artiste management 10,000 ordinary shares 55
of HK$1 each
Bt YN 10,000 REREE 1 BT
EER
MATV Limited Hong Kong Television operations 4 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each
FRERERAT B EREH ARERAEE1ER
ZEER
MATV (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Television operations 20,000 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each
ZRER(EHERAR i EREHR 20,000 RBREE1 AT

ZEER
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iR — EEMELF

37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries 37 &H

(Continued) &)

Percentage of

Particulars of effective interest

Place of issued share capital/ held/controlled
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
BRITRE/ FEMEE /126
i B A L TERE EMEFHE ZANBEEAL
Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Continued)
FNERMESERR : (8)
Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited Hong Kong Sales and distribution of 10,000 ordinary shares 100
audio visual products of HK$1 each
E5(EF8)ERAA BA HERROTEER 10,000 5 RAE 1T
ZERR
Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited Hong Kong Production of films and 2 ordinary shares 100
tele-features of HK$1 each
EnEYREBRAR BE BUFEYRERY 2RERAB1 BT ZEER
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each
500,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each
EONEREERAR Bh NERE 2REREE1BrzEBR
500,000 B RAE1ETZ
BREEELRNG
MAMO Games Limited Hong Kong Mobiles games applications 10,000 ordinary shares 55
of HK$1 each
EnRMERBRAR )i FRERERER 10,000 RERAE1ET
EER
Mei Ah Entertainment Productions Limited Hong Kong Concert performance 10,000 ordinary shares 55
of HK$1 each
EnGEREERAR BE EIES 10,000 RERAEE 18T
L EBR
BMEGEERHERAR PRC Property investment RMB16,000,000 70
HE NERE ALK 16,000,000 7T
FRREFAUL (LR BRAF PRC Provision of services RMB10,000,000 100
(note (d) (HZ(a)
HE iR AK#10,000,000 7
EnREFREE (LR ERAH PRC Theatre investment RMB20,000,000 100
(note (d)) (41 (a))
HE EFhRE AR#20,000,000 7T
FRYH(X2)ERAF (note () (Wi () PRC Theatre operations RMB3,000,000 100
HE ELE AK3,000,000 7t

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &
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37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries 37 £EREE — TENBLR

(Continued) (&)
Percentage of
Particulars of effective interest
Place of issued share capital/ held/controlled
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
ER{TRE/ FRERE /26
1) i R 2 0 B TERH EMEEEE CHEREBERL

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Continued)
FNERMESERR : (8)

EORABERGERLA Taiwan Production, licensing and 2,000,000 ordinary shares 85
distribution of film rights of NTD10 each
and television operations

=) 2 RERETEZMRE 2,000,000 RERAE10
REREE MakzEER
EDRX(EF)MEERDT (note () (#Z@)  PRC Video onling investment ~ HK$2,500,000 (2014; 90
HK$1,000,000)
HE FRRRBRERE 2,500,000 B
(ZZ—M% 1,000,000
BT
FR R (L8)ERAR (note ) (M)  PRC Theatre operations RMB6,000,000 100
HE EE AR# 6,000,000
EMNZBEEZAREAERLT (hote (c) (Hi () PRC Software and game design ~ RMB1,100,000 72
HE R RIBRRS AR¥1,100,0007

Note: Kzt -

(@) Other than MATV (Asia) Limited, which operates in (@ KBEDZEHR(EMBERATRES
Hong Kong and overseas; BEFIXEE#RHRERAHE, REBHNEE  BEMEZAERNESR
EERAFAX L (EAR)ERAT, EEREFREE L PRAF > ERRHFEHR(ER)
F)BERAT, ERFH(KE)BRAT, EEAK(IER) BRAT ETEREHEKREE
BEERAR, ERXHRFE(LE)BRAT and BMNS R)ERAT  ZDEHE(KE)ER
R EN 2R EIBR A E which operate in the PRC; 3 N ETXR(AEF)REERA
IR R IR{P AR A E which operates in Taiwan; all T ETYREE(LEE)ERA T
subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong. FEMNSEEZALZEERDF

RPEEE AREXDREBFRR
DERDARNEBEKEN  FREMW

(o) All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability (b) LEIFBEMEBARABRAT °
companies.

(c) Being sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises (c) ARBHRENEERIZFMIEED
established under the PRC laws. £

(d) Being wholly foreign owned enterprises established d) BBEPBEEERIZIBREEDL
under the PRC laws. o
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38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

ASSETS =E
Non-current assets ERDHEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT 2R
Current assets mENEE
Prepayments TR FIE
Cash and cash equivalents RERZERREER
Total assets HEE
EQUITY a2

Equity attributable to owners of Z2EHE AEES
the Company

Share capital [N
Share premium B& 10 s E
Reserves F]
Total equity s
LIABILITIES &\
Current liabilities mE &R
Other payables H{th e+ FRIE
Total liabilities waE
Total equity and liabilities HESRER

The balance sheet of the company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 29th June 2016 and were
signed on its behalf.

Director
EE
Li Kuo Hsing
FER

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

38 FAFZHEARRRAEME

)]
(a) FLFIZEEREBR
As at 31st March
®=BA=+—H
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Htat FETT FiET
549,582 462,806
337 337
195,211 10
195,548 347
745,130 463,153
25 118,475 112,661
25 407,428 126,733
Note (b)
Ktz (b) 218,747 223,540
744,650 462,934
480 219
480 219
745,130 463,153

AARZEERERN -2 —RF
ANAEZtThREESSHE - ¥K

HEE -

Director

EE

Tong Hing Chi

EER
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38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 38 FLRFIZEEABRRREMRE

the Company (Continued) LIE-))
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) FLAFZFEMEE
Share Share-based
redemption payment  Contributed Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
DR &2

BROMOIER MG BARR RiER st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET FET

(note (i))
(Wt ()

At 1st April 2014 R-B-M&EMA-A 12 — 235,020 (11,433) 223,599

Loss for the year FRER - - - (8,541) (8,541)
Equity settled share-  UEZEENRHDE

based transactions ~ EEZH{RRS - 8,482 - - 8,482

At 31st March 2015 ~ R-Z—-1%

=A=1+-H 12 8,482 235,020 (19,974) 223,540

At 1st April 2015 R-Z-REMA—A 12 8,482 235,020 (19,974) 223,540

Loss for the year EREE - - - (8,775) (8,775)
Equity settled share-  UEREENRHD 5

based transactions ERHRS = 3,696 = 286 3,082

At 31st March 2016~ R=Z—XF
=A=+-H 12 12,178 235,020 (28,463) 218,747
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired, the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999 and the transfer from
share premium during the year ended 31st
March 2010. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributable if these are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

account.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

38 FAFIZHREARER#EME
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(b) FAFZEEMEE (&

(i)

RABZBABREARRT
AREMEBELAAERITR
AT 2RO EEERR
WEMEBLAREEREZE
B -RBE-LWAWAE=ZA
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(@ ARREEZAWLRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ = /Zl-i%#&%m—.lﬂhi

39 Benefits and interests of directors 39 EFERIRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFHE£
The remuneration of all directors for the years BE—_E—REFR-_ZE—FHFE=A
ended 31st March 2016 and 2015 is set out below: =t HIEFEZ2RBRESCHMEH
HIT :
2016
Z3-5F

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the company
o its subsidiary undertaking:
REAREER(FRESLTUERELARE RECCHEBLHE

Remunerations

paid or

Estimated receivable

money value Employer's in respect

ofother ~ contribution  of accepting

benefits  to a retirement office

EMiEHZ  benefitscheme s director

Discretionary ~ fkHtEMEE fixe HE
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses (Note vi) EigH EERBZ Total
Ete fig it il A (W) itife  chambhEd it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000
-2 FAT FE1 7AT FE1 7AT -2

Executive directors WiEs
Li Kuo Hsing 388 - 4641 - 600 18 - 5,265
Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executive Officer) BERREF) - 2023 - 600 18 - 2,641
Li Tang Yuk 3N - 633 - 600 18 - 1,51
Dong Ming g - 2,015 - 600 18 - 2,693
Non-executive directors FUfTES
Hugo Shong RES 80 - - 139 - - 219
Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford 80 - - 139 - - 219
Independent non-executive directors BIkufEs
Lam Lee G, S i - - 139 - - 29
Cheung Ming Man (note (i) EHEm ) 5 - - 139 - - 192
Guo Yan Jun J8E 80 - - 139 - - 219
Leung Tak Sing, Dominic (note (i) DE2 (W2 i) - - - - - - -
mn 9,378 - 3,09 n - 12,918
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E TS AR TR

39 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of all directors for the years
ended 31st March 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

39 EFERIRER 2

(a)

EEMe#)

BE-Z-FR-E

—HF=A

=St-HEFE2RESCHMEH
T

2

=B

15
it

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the company
or its subsidiary undertaking:
HEABRES(TRARLATANRAREH BR L CHARHE

Remunerations

paid or
Estimated receivable
money value in respect
ofofher  Employer's  of accepting
be_nefi{s contribution office
BEBHZ  toarotiement  asdiector
Discrotionary (5T EMEE  benefit scheme s
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses (Notevii) — EEzEKk  EZEEZ Total
FEL e ¢ Rk (i) BAGEMER  BAEREA ot
HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
7/ 72 7/ 72 77 Fén 7
Executive directors §iiEs
Li Kuo Hsing B = 4533 - 835 18 - 5,386
Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executive Officer ERR(AEH) - 1,088 - 835 18 - 2,791
Chau Kei Leung (note (i) BRRW 1) - 10 - - 1 - il
Li Tang Yuk (note (i) ERmAY) - 48 - 835 16 - 1,199
Dong Ming (note (v]) B9k ) - 1,178 - 835 1l - 2004
Non-executive directors FUTES
Hugo Shong FES 80 - - 19 - - VI
Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford 80 = = 193 = = 23
Independent non-executive directors BUkUGES
Lam Lee G. it 80 - - 19 - - VK
Wang Huarong (note (vi) TER Wit ) 3 - - - - - %
Cheung Ming Man (note (i) RS ) 80 - - 193 - - m
Guo Yan Jun JRE 80 - - 193 - - 23
4 8067 - 4305 B - 12,869
(i) None of the directors has waived any of their (i) mﬁég;ﬁg;\zg_ =T —XE
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st —E—RE=H=+—H1
March 2016 and 2015. $FZ1€H—J@H$ °
(i)  The director resigned on 1st December 2015. i) EBEHR=-ZE-—HEE+=-A—H
BHE ©
(iiiy  The director was appointed on 1st March 2016. (iiy BEBR-ZE—XRE=ZF—HE
ZfE o
(iv) The director resigned on 1st May 2014. (iv) ggg/\_ T —UERF—HE
£
(v)  The director was appointed on 1st May 2014. (v) ggg/\_ T UERF—HE
ZfE o
(vi) The director was appointed on 1st September (vii BBR=-ZE-—NFEHLE—HE
2014. S{F o
. . . (vii) EBER=ZZ-NFEAA—HE
(vii) The director retired on 1st September 2014. T o
- , (vii) EALERIIS ARG BER >
(viii) Other benefits represents share-based payment B o

expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2016 and 2015.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2016 and 2015.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available director’s services

During the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015,
no consideration was paid by the company to third

parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015,
there are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors. Controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with

such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of 31st March 2016 and 2015 or at any time during
the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

e SRR MR

39 EFRIRER 2

EEEKET
BE-Z—RER-_Z—HF=A
=t+—HLEFE  BSEFESEC W
HAFUEAE (TR AR FI ©

EFERLEH
BE-E- A FR-F-HF=A
=t+—-BLEFE  BESECWE
A WEEM AL IEBR] o

RERUEEREAE=FRH#Z
KR

BE-Z-—AER-F-HF=A
=t+—HLEFE  ARABMERE
RESSRBEOEFNE=FLR

E

FRLUEE EEZERGHEER
MERRESZRAZER  EHER
RRMXSHZEH

BHE_Z—XR"ER-ZE—HF=H
=+—HIEFEE BMELULES -

=z

=&
BACER  EEFREMRE R
B

EERTS  RENSHDPZEX
ga
RAGREEHMERARDQAAMET L
R-ZEB-—XRER-ZE-HF=A
=+ HAFZRRBE_Z—~<F
R—ZE—RF=A=+—HLEFE
EREGEDAE N EH RSB ER
BEEZRS  ZHRENTEHE
REEREEEAER °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEHBEHE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years are as follows:

Results

Loss attributable to

owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 4 & 51 & B B bR 2 &

FEERBEIBAMBRFE2XE EEHA
BENT :

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1—HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE —E-HF —ET—NmFE —E—= —E-—F
HK$000  HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F&ir FET FET FET FET
i
PANNGTE 2PN
E5i8 (66,188) (39,338) (23,896) (48,735) (11,413)
As at 31st March
®W=A=+—8H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE—RE —T-HF T-NF —T-=F —ZT-—F
HK$000  HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET FBT FET FET
HEHAE
BEE 928,163 707,180 709,108 711,073 808,891
wmafs (168,243) (172,239)  (151,844)  (135,570)  (193,614)
Bk 759,920 534,941 557,264 575,503 615,277




SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ETEREWEM &R

Address
ok

Shop 2 on Ground Floor
Po Sun Mansion
No. 89 Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
JUBEAL T
EHFIH 893
ENRE
#h T 2 SR AR

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28
on 17th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NEENFEE
 HLT 32 5%
EEPLITHE
535 ~ 15-23 58 & 25-28 35 T35

Workshop Nos. 1-2
on 10th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENFEE
5 BT 32 9%
EETLO1042
1-257 135

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and
Car Parking Space No. V18 on Basement
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NEENEEE
LEE 155
NEEB T HA
5123 $E R 245 TREE(L
Rt E V18 SRy

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60
The Villa Horizon
No. 8 Silver Stream Path, Silverstrand
Sai Kung, New Territories

HREE
RSBE AT
xR

2895 ¥E R 5995 &% 60 SR E

Type
L

Commercial

GES

Industrial

T

Industrial

I%

Industrial

T

Residential

Lease term

HHFER

Medium

ik

Medium

Sk

Medium

Sk

Medium

P

Medium

Gkt

Percentage
of Group’s
interests
*HKEZ
B2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F#k

183



SCHEDULE dF;PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TEREVEMR

Address
ok

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower Yangcheng
International Commercial Center
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China

HEEARHAFE
&M
K&

BARRE
3% B PR 7 B R
a5 81£801-814 =

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District
Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin
Si Ming District
Xiamen
The People’s Republic of China
hEANRAME
=P
EHE
BELERBEEEPL
REE AT 35RIE21 B
2101-2106 E T

Flat 1 on Level 3

No. 2 Hua Xiao Street

Tianhe Ming Ya Court

Tianhe East Road, Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China
FEARLNER

B

KA &

FOM R B

PSEIEEY i)

ERA 2RI E

184 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED XS IR EAE BB R L Al

WO N

Type
WA

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Residential

Percentage

of Group’s

interests

Lease term EEEZ

BHEW E2aok

Medium 100%
FR R

Medium 70%
AR

Medium 100%
R ER






	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
	BACK COVER

